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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is a retailer which sells cosmetics products and ladies fashion through
our retail network consisting of approximately 118 points of sale in Hong Kong
and Macau, to provide quality and value for money cosmetics products and fashion
apparel and accessories to a wide range of consumers at cosmetics stores, namely
Colourmix and MORIMOR, and ladies fashion stores, namely Veeko and Wanko,
respectively.

Business Review

During the year ended 31st March, 2023 (the “Review Financial Year”), the Group
recorded revenue of HK$472,625,000 (2022: HK$499,849,000), representing a
decrease of 5.4% as compared to the same period last year. During the Review
Financial Year, Hong Kong economy continued to face grave challenges. At the
beginning of 2022, a COVID-19 variant, Omicron, broke out in Hong Kong,
leading to the fifth outbreak. To contain the spread of the COVID-19 virus, strict
anti-pandemic measures were implemented in the city, including vaccine pass,
compulsory quarantine measures and extension of the border lockdown, which
adversely affected various industries, such as tourism and retail. At the start of
2023, the global COVID-19 pandemic was gradually under control. In light of
which, Hong Kong economy and retail market also entered the phase of recovery.
In February 2023, Hong Kong reopened its border, allowing tourists from other
regions to visit as in the past. As a result, the number of tourists increased, and
retail business in turn showed signs of improvement. The Group recorded a
significant year-on-year increase of 44.1% in revenue during the fourth quarter
(January to March 2023). However, the positive effects brought by the reopening
of the border was inadequate to recover the decrease in revenue of 17.1% recorded
during the first three quarters of the Review Financial Year. Furthermore, the
Group has fewer stores as we closed down those with unsatisfactory performance
last year. As a result, the revenue of the Group decreased by 5.4% for the year
ended 31st March, 2023.
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Business Review (Continued)

Despite the Group generated less revenue in general as compared to that of last
year, the Group recorded a gross profit of HK$229,763,000 for the year ended 31st
March, 2023, representing an increase of 17.1% as compared to HK$196,216,000
recorded for the same period last year. The increase in gross profit was mainly
attributable to the improvement in the gross profit margin of cosmetics business,
which reached 38.1% by virtue of the Group’s optimization of product mix and
effective adjustments to the sale and marketing strategies, representing an increase
of 12.4 percentage points as compared to last year.

During the Review Financial Year, the financial performances of all segments of
the Group showed improvements, where the Group recorded a profit after tax of
HK$5,027,000 (2022: loss of HK$53,366,000). During the Review Financial Year,
the Group’s profit included the increase of HK$19,881,000 (2022: increase of
HK$6,096,000) in the fair value of investment properties. In addition, the Group
received allowances and subsidies in relation to the COVID-19 pandemic of a total
of HK$16,244,000 (2022: HK$1,365,000) from governments during the Review
Financial Year.

colourmixey MoriMor O  VeCKO  wanko




BRI B R QA

TEHES

Chairman’s Statement

KXo (E)
btk fm R 55

M2023F3A318 » AEEBHEZE56M
Colourmix 5 MORIMOR 1t # & 5 F9 J&
(202243 A318 : 58f8) » EAs51fEM
REE + SEINRIRIRPT o KA B BB B E
B REBENEENRFBEIRE —Z%RE
WIRGR o 2023628 ¢ HHEEO R
MEEREBEMESNFAE - ~&EBt
i 6B 3 75 & ¥ 58 A 301,627,0007 7T (2022
F 1 342,099,0008 70 ) © WA F BB
D11.8% - (b mEBEE D HEEEE
1,781,000 7% 7T (2022 & : & 825,554,000
BIL)  BREAFRBRERET93.0% °
EEVREENEHRENEEIRE b
MBEHBEZHRAMBEETS SEEB
RABLLERERE  ANAMHESTEH
R BbtmEL 2 EFEEEFAE
LEREE M T 124 E D2 E38.1% ° It
SN - EER BB REERIMEL Tk
mEB2TEMNE  ERTSEHLEBR
R E AR GIRAE 2 54 - R NEE T3
HHESAEANERBZIEH  BATE
HE BN - TROBEMRFEEBRKE
MREEZ— -

Business Review (Continued)

Cosmetics Business

As at 31st March, 2023, the Group had a total of 56 cosmetics stores (31st March,
2022: 58), namely Colourmix and MORIMOR, with 51 located in Hong Kong
and 5 in Macau. The repercussions of the pandemic progressively disappeared
since the last quarter of the Review Financial Year. In February 2023, some
cosmetics stores located near the border reopened following the cancellation of
the border lockdown. The cosmetics business of the Group recorded revenue
of HK$301,627,000 (2022: HK$342,099,000), representing decrease of 11.8%
as compared to the same period last year. The cosmetics business recorded a
segment loss of HK$1,781,000 (2022: loss of HK$25,554,000), representing
a significant decrease of 93.0% as compared to the same period last year. The
business environment during the Review Financial Year was a plight, and the
cosmetics business was mainly driven by local consumption. Nevertheless, the
gross profit margin of the cosmetics business reached 38.1% by virtue of the
Group’s optimization of product mix and effective adjustments to the sale and
marketing strategies, representing a significant increase of 12.4 percentage points
as compared to last year. Moreover, the Group also revamped the retail network
of the cosmetics business during the Review Financial Year by closing down 5
underperforming stores upon expiration of lease, meanwhile launching 3 new
stores at premium locations with reasonable rent, thereby enhancing the operational
effectiveness of the stores, thus leading to the reduction of loss incurred during the
Review Financial Year.
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Business Review (Continued)

Fashion Business

As at 31st March, 2023, the Group had a total of 62 ladies fashion stores (31st
March, 2022: 82), namely Veeko and Wanko, with 55 located in Hong Kong,
6 in Macau and 1 in China. The revenue of the Group’s fashion business was
HK$170,998,000 (2022: HK$157,750,000), representing an increase of 8.4% as
compared to the same period last year. The fashion business recorded a segment
loss of HK$1,437,000 (2022: loss of HK$26,041,000), representing a significant
decrease of 94.5% as compared to the same period last year. During the Review
Financial Year, the Group closed down 13 stores in Mainland China. Since the
retail and wholesale revenue of Mainland China took up less than 3% (2022: 4.1%)
of the total revenue of the fashion business, such decision did not pose much
effect on the Group, and was conducive in terms of reducing the overall operating
loss. With regard to Hong Kong and Macau market, the Group closed down 12
underperforming stores upon expiration of lease, meanwhile launching 5 stores at
premium locations with reasonable rent, thereby optimizing the retail network and
enhancing the operational effectiveness of the stores, thus leading to the reduction
of loss incurred during the Review Financial Year. Furthermore, as the production
resources of the Group’s fashion business were concentrated in its self-owned plant
in China, we are able to control costs with flexibility. In face of the tough operating
environment, the Group arranged production flexibly, as a bid to reduce inventory
level, production costs and expenses.
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Prospects

In view of the scrapping of the anti-pandemic measures and the reopening of the
border, the Group expects the market to gradually recover, hence we are cautiously
optimistic towards the economic prospects. The growing momentum during
January to March 2023 has continued after March 2023. The Group recorded a
double-digit increase in revenue during the period between 1st April to 15th June,
2023, as compared to the same period last year, among which, the revenue of the
cosmetics business increased by approximately 26% and the revenue of the fashion
business also increased by approximately 16%. As the business environment
of Hong Kong and Macau gradually resumed stable, the sentiment of the retail
market is also improving. The management will continue to search for ideal shops
at premium locations with reasonable rent to launch new stores. The Group also
plans to close down underperforming stores upon expiration of lease, as well as
prudently grasps market opportunities to optimize our retail network. Up to the
moment, the Group has signed 7 new leases, some of which are located in the core
tourism areas in Tsim Sha Tsui and Shatin. 3 stores will be launched during the
first quarter of the new financial year (i.e. April to June 2023), and 4 stores were
scheduled to be launched during the second quarter (i.e. July to September 2023).
Such stores include cosmetics and fashion stores. Meanwhile, the Group closed
down 2 underperforming stores upon expiration of lease in May 2023, which was
conducive in terms of reducing the overall operating loss.
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Prospects (Continued)

In terms of the cosmetics business, as aforementioned, in February 2023, Hong
Kong reopened its border, allowing tourists from other regions to visit as in the
past. As a result, the number of tourists increased, retail business in turn showed
signs of improvement. The Group recorded a significant year-on-year increase in
the sales of cosmetics during the fourth quarter of the Review Financial Year (i.e.
January to March 2023), the segment also recorded profit during such quarter.
The growing momentum has continued after the Review Financial Year. Hence
the Group recorded an increase of 26.4% in the revenue of the cosmetics business
for the period from 1st April to 15th June, 2023 as compared to the same period
last year. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to optimize product mix to increase
gross profit margin. As a matter of fact, the gross profit margin of the cosmetics
business between April and May 2023 was maintained at the approximate level to
that of the year 2022/2023, i.e. at 38.1%. Based on (i) the current trend; and (ii)
the assumption that there would not be any unforeseen adverse circumstances,
the Group believes that even in the absence of the COVID-19 pandemic related
allowances and subsidies provided by governments, we could keep the positive
earnings momentum from the final quarter of the Review Financial Year during
April and May 2023. In addition, the Group successfully launched new stores at
premium locations with reasonable rent during the first half of the financial year
2023/2024, as well as closed down stores that incurred loss to lower operating
loss. Given the foresaid, the Group is confident that these strategies can further
enhance the performance of the cosmetics business in the coming financial year.
Apart from physical stores, the Group will also continue to collaborate with well-
known e-commerce platforms such as Tmall Global, JD.com and TikTok Shop,
etc, committing to both online and offline businesses. We will also participate
in commodity fairs across the world to increase our brand awareness and expand

customer base.
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Prospects (Continued)

As opposed to the cosmetics business, the main target market of our fashion
business is local consumers. Therefore, the reduction in the number of tourists
caused by the pandemic did not impact the business as immensely as it did to
the cosmetics business. Thus, the business was able to recover faster. During
the Review Financial Year, despite having fewer stores, the sales of the fashion
business increased by 8.4%. The Group noticed that the fashion business was
sluggish in Mainland China market and its contribution to the Group’s revenue was
comparatively minimal, so we ceased the operation of the retail business in China.
By doing so, not only could we reduce the overall operating loss incurred by the
fashion business, we could also focus more resources on developing the fashion
business in Hong Kong and Macau market.

The Group is principally engaged in cosmetics and fashion retail businesses,
and also holds investment properties and self-occupied properties. Based on the
valuation conducted by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited and Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers, the valuation of such properties amounted to HK$738,548,000 in
aggregate as at 31st March, 2023. These properties also serve as financial support
for the Group. The Group will continue to manage its financial and cash position
prudently. Despite all the challenges ahead, the Group will continue to focus on its
business and take a number of contingency measures, including but not limited to
continuing to negotiate with landlords to bargain for reasonable rents, optimizing
the retail network, restructuring the product mix, proactively controlling the
inventory level and strictly controlling cost and expense. In the hope that the
performances of the two core retail segments can continue to grow, and that the
Group can maintain profitable.

Properties

The Group’s properties located in Hong Kong and China including investment
properties, leasehold land and buildings and leasehold land outside Hong Kong.
The valuation of such properties as at 31st March, 2023 in aggregate amounted to
HK$738,548,000 (31st March, 2022: HK$717,565,000).

The investment properties were stated at fair value in the consolidated statement
of financial position, amounted to HK$472,456,000 as at 31st March, 2023 (31st
March, 2022: HK$447,692,000).
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Properties (Continued)

Certain of the Group’s properties were stated at cost less depreciation in the
consolidated statement of financial position, including leasehold land and buildings
with carrying amount of HK$33,116,000 as at 31st March, 2023 (31st March, 2022:
HK$38,355,000) and leasehold land outside Hong Kong with carrying amount of
HK$2,584,000 at 31st March, 2023 (31st March, 2022: HK$3,337,000). The fair
value of such properties as at 31st March, 2023 was HK$266,092,000 (31st March,
2022:HK$269,873,000).

Liquidity & Financial Resources

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and bank balances (mainly
in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi) amounted to HK$38,097,000 (31st March,
2022: HK$10,259,000). The outstanding bank borrowings (mainly in Hong Kong
Dollar) and loan from a director amounted to HK$383,818,000 (31st March, 2022:
HK$375,505,000) and HK$13,790,000 (31st March, 2022: nil), respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, the current ratio was 0.35 (31st March, 2022:
0.37) and the gearing ratio of the Group was 1.92 (31st March, 2022: 1.88) which
was calculated based on the Group’s total bank borrowings of HK$383,818,000
(31st March, 2022: HK$375,505,000) and the total equity of HK$200,210,000
(31st March, 2022: HK$199,411,000).

At 31st March, 2023, the Group had banking facilities amounting to
HK$428,449,000 (31st March, 2022: HK$443,038,000), of which
HK$389,002,000 (31st March, 2022: HK$386,355,000) was utilised by the Group.

For the details of the cashflow management of the Group, please refer to the
“Prospects” of the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency purchases (mainly in
United States Dollar and Euro), which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 42% (2022: 45%) of purchases costs are in foreign currencies
for the year. The management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency risk by entering into forward
contracts should the need arises.

Pledge of Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the amount of assets pledged by the Group
to certain banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group was
HK$508,156,000 (31st March, 2022: HK$489,384,000).

Contingent Liabilities

At 31st March, 2023, the Group had provided guarantees of HK$702,809,000 (31st
March, 2022: HK$740,915,000) to certain banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Staff & Remuneration Policies

At 31st March, 2023, the Group had approximately 910 employees (31st March,
2022: approximately 950). The Group mainly determines staff remuneration
(including insurance and medical benefits) in accordance with the industry’s
practices. The Group also implemented a reward scheme for its staff based on their
individual performance. In addition to their basic remuneration and welfare, some
key employees were granted share options as reward and incentive to enhance their
loyalty to the Group.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to all the
employees for their devotion, contribution and diligence and my deepest gratitude
to all the shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners for their
continuous support.

Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27th June, 2023
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Annual Report 2023

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2023.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

Review and Performance of the Year and Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A review of the business of the Group during the year and its future development,
an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” section on pages 5 to 13 of
this annual report, which constitute part of this directors’ report. The financial
risk management objectives and policies of the Group are shown in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Company is committed to the sustainable development of the environment
and our society. The Group has endeavoured to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopted effective environmental policies
to ensure its projects meet the required standards and ethics.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the year under review, as far as the Board of Directors (the “Board”) and
management are aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.
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Key Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company recognises that our employees, customers and suppliers and business
associates are key stakeholders to the Company’s success. We strive to achieve
corporate sustainability through engaging our employees, providing quality
products and services to our customers, collaborating with business partners
(including suppliers and contractors) to deliver quality sustainable products and
services and supporting our community.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2023 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 65 of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared for the year. The Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HKO.5 cent per share out of the share premium
account of the Company, amounting to HK$12,590,000, to the shareholders of the
Company. Upon approval by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and confirmation by the Board
that immediately following the date on which the final dividend is to be paid,
the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business, the proposed final dividend will be paid to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members of the Company as at
19th September, 2023 in cash.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to its shareholders as at 31st March, 2023 amounted to HK$120,340,000 (2022:
HK$123,116,000), comprise of share premium amounting to HK$223,654,000
(2022: HK$223,654,000), contributed surplus amounting to HK$53,135,000 (2022:
HK$53,135,000) and net of accumulated loss amounting to HK$156,449,000
(2022: HK$153,673,000).
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny (Chairman)
Ms. LAM Yuk Sum (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive director

Mr. LAM Man Tin

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong
Mr. CHENG Man Loong, Monty
Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Lam Man Tin and Mr. Cheng Man Loong, Monty shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM. Both of the above retiring directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years which should be renewable for each term of
three years until terminated by either party by three months’ prior written notice.
The non-executive director and each of the independent non-executive directors
has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a term of two years.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

colourmixey MoriMor O  VeCKO  wanko




BEERZERBRAA

EEEHEE
Directors’ Report

BEEEHN

RAFEER - BEI LR FEEFAEGHER
RAEMEBREAEABIEF 2 EE
RITBZA#)

BEFF 2 RERX

RAFERBEAEESREEAL - U
ARREEARm A ZEEFRBEKRX
(EBERBEREDF622E R AHEDI([ AR
1601 1) 46916 L E W AIRER

EERSREBEASHE
BITES

BRSE ST AE (AT - BBIESD) -+ 665% @ AR
EEEXFE - BRITAETRREZEGZE
FEARFMEE G 2K E ° BIN1984F K
UAEE - BEASEMEERERHIET
RABE B EEERTEER A
WA B3OFLEER o B AER2001F 11 A%
BMEEAFTFIERE  WH2012F11 A
BRI LK ERIE012FE - FAEMKE
HRrrzlke

MERLZLT © 6357 ° BAEBITHER R
EECYMEEeRREEZEBEZKE -
BEEAEBEZATER FHIRKEE
BA R HERERAIE - 511987
FEMAREE  REERARTEERH
EEABICTFLER - WABEEEZE
F o

colourmixey MoriMor O  VECKO  wanko

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the year and up to the date of this directors’ report, a permitted indemnity
provision (as defined under section 469 of the Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 of
Laws of Hong Kong (“Companies Ordinance”)), for the benefit of the directors of
the Company has been and is still in force.

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Executive directors

Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny (former name: Cheng Tsang Man), aged 66, is the
chairman of the Group. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee and
a member of the remuneration committee of the Board. He established the Group
in 1984 and is responsible for the overall strategic planning and formulation of
corporate policies of the Group. Mr. Cheng has over 39 years of experience in the
manufacturing and retail business. Mr. Cheng was awarded the Young Industrialist
Awards of Hongkong in November 2001 and the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur
Award of the Year 2012 China in November 2012. He is the husband of Ms. Lam
Yuk Sum.

Ms. LAM Yuk Sum, aged 63, is the chief executive officer of the Group and a
member of each of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Board. She is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group, specifically
the merchandising management and design and product development. She joined
the Group in 1987 and has over 36 years of experience in fashion design and retail
business. She is the wife of Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny.
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Non-executive director

Mr. LAM Man Tin, aged 64, has been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since 2nd February, 2016 and re-designated as a non-executive
director with effect from 13th July, 2018. He was a member of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Board from
2nd February, 2016 to 12th July, 2018. He graduated from the University of Hull
with a master degree in strategic marketing (distance learning) in July 1996. Mr.
Lam joined Aeon Stores Co., Ltd. in 1992 and has over 30 years of experience in
retail and service industries. He was an executive director of Aeon Stores (Hong
Kong) Co., Limited (“Aeon Stores HK”), a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code:
984) from May 1999 to May 2012. Mr. Lam served as the managing director of
Aeon Stores HK from May 2006 to May 2012. Following his resignation from the
board of directors of Aeon Stores HK, he was engaged as a consultant of Aeon
Stores HK until September 2012. Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive
director, a member of each of the audit committee and the remuneration committee
and the chairman of the nomination committee of S. Culture International Holdings
Limited (currently known as TATA Health International Holdings Limited), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1255) from
May 2013 to July 2017. He has been the chief executive officer strategist of Shirble
Department Store Holdings (China) Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 312) from September 2013 to July 2020. He is
also the founding member of the Hong Kong Yau Yat Chuen Lions Club.
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Independent non-executive directors

Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong, aged 74, has been as an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 13th July, 2018. He is also a member of each of
the audit committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee
of the Board. He has obtained extensive experience in property leasing industry
since 1970. From March 1970 to December 2004, Mr. Au-Yeung worked at Sun
Hung Kai Real Estate Agency Limited and his last position was general manager at
the leasing department. Mr. Au-Yeung worked at The Link Management Limited
from December 2004 to October 2008 and his last position was head of project
leasing at the project leasing department. Mr. Au-Yeung was an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of the nomination committee, a member of each of
the remuneration committee and the audit committee of EJE (Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Jia Meng Holdings Limited), a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8101) (which was
delisted in December 2022), from August 2015 to April 2016.

Mr. CHENG Man Loong, Monty, aged 76, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 26th September, 2019. He is also a member of each
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Board. Mr. Cheng has extensive experience in trading, sale and manufacturing of
toy products. He has been engaged in relevant business since 1968. Mr. Cheng
worked at various companies, including Nasta (Hong Kong) Limited, that were
principally engaged in trading, sale and manufacturing of toy products between
1968 and 2012.

Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay, aged 70, has been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since 17th September, 2004. He is also the chairman of each of
the audit committee and remuneration committee and a member of the nomination
committee of the Board. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and has
been a partner of Yeung & Cheuk, a firm of Certified Public Accountants in Hong
Kong for over 25 years. He graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a degree of Bachelor of Social Sciences.
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Senior management

Mr. KWONG Chun Ming, Alex, aged 44, is the chief financial officer of the Group.
He joined the Group in September 2021. Mr. Kwong holds a Bachelor of Arts in
Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 18 years of
experience in accounting and auditing. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kwong
worked as chief financial officer and company secretary of Gain Plus Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
9900) from May 2017 to September 2021. Besides, he worked in international
accounting firms for thirteen years.

Ms. WONG Chi Ying, aged 54, is the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in July 1996, Ms. Wong worked in an international accounting
firm for about four years. She holds a bachelor degree in accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save as the share option scheme set out below, during the year ended 31st
March, 2023, the Company did not have newly entered or existing equity-linked
agreements.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the AGM of the Company held on 30th August, 2013, the Company
approved and adopted a share option scheme. The remaining life of the share option
scheme is five months as at 31st March, 2023.

Particulars of the share option scheme adopted by the Group are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

No options were granted to the directors or substantial shareholders of the
Company during the year or outstanding under the share option scheme.
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21E1R9A
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2NF1A8H

9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2022

MIFIAYEE
2004F 17288

29th January, 2021 to
28th January, 2024

MIFIAVEE
2026%1 7285

29th January, 2021 to
28th January, 2026

ANFIR16EE
2005F2A158

16th February, 2022 to
15th February, 2025

ANFIA16BE
200528158

16th February, 2022 to
15th February, 2027
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2024F1A8A

9th January, 2022 to
8th January, 2024

451898 F
2026%1728H

29th January, 2024 to
28th January, 2026

2026518298 %
2008F1528H

29th January, 2026 to
28th January, 2028

2005F2R 1682
027528 15R
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207F2A160E
2009%2815H
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BRTEE
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per share

0.1832%7
HKS0.1832

0.0534%7
HK$0.0534

0.05347%7
HK$0.0534

0.050677
HK$0.0506

0050672
HK$0.0506

The following table discloses details of options held by employees of the Group
and movements in such holdings during the year ended 31st March, 2023:

H0% REER REER REER REER 3%
4A1R R it i Pl 3A31R
i3] Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed WAL

Balance during during during during  Outstanding

at 1.4.2022 the year the year the year theyear  at 31.3.2023
2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000
18,000,000 - - - (1,200,000) 16,800,000
18,000,000 - - - (1,200,000) 16,800,000
5,150,000 - - - - 5,150,000
5,150,000 - - - - 5,150,000
48,800,000 - - - (2,400,000) 46,400,000

Company as at the date of this report.
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The total number of shares available for issue under the share option scheme is
138,834,764, represent approximately 5.51% of the issued share capital of the

The number of options available for grant under the scheme mandate as at 1st
April, 2022 and 31st March, 2023 was 136,434,764 and 138,834,764 respectively.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31st March, 2023, the interests of the directors and the chief executive officer

in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing

the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as

follows:

EENE Name of director
EREE ST Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
MEHLZ L Ms. Lam Yuk Sum

(TTB#B%) (Chief Executive Officer)
HiaF © 2% % 1,393,347,737 B 19 H Silver  Note:

Crown Profits Limited ([ Silver Crown |)
Hz5E A ° Silver CrownH i {5 J5
% 1#{57EThe J Cheng Family Trust#)
BEEAFEE  ZEEEIHXR
ABREHEEERMRERLLTH
KGR E ©
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B EEHE
Capacity/
Nature of interest

B A REFEREA
Founder and
Beneficiary of Trust

BEEAA

Beneficial owner

EREX@mA

Beneficiary of Trust

BEmEA A

Beneficial owner

a1
ZEREE

Number of issued
ordinary shares held

1,393,347,737
(Htat)
(Note)

185,219,227

1,578,566,964

AATRE BT
REBEDL
Percentage of the
issued share capital
of the Company

62.69%

1,393,347,737
(Htst)
(Note)

272,916,013

1,666,263,750

66.17%

These 1,393,347,737 shares are beneficially owned by Silver Crown Profits

Limited (“Silver Crown”). The shares in Silver Crown are in turn held by the
trustee of The J Cheng Family Trust, a discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects of which include family members of Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny and
Ms. Lam Yuk Sum.
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Other than disclosed above and certain nominee shares in subsidiaries held by
certain directors in trust for the Group, none of the directors and the chief executive
officer had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of part XV of the SFO) as at 31st March, 2023, as required to be recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive directors,
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent non-executive directors
are independent.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts of Significance

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company or an entity connected with a director (as
defined under Section 486 of the Companies Ordinance) had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Connected Transaction

The Company confirms that the related party transaction as disclosed in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements is connected transaction that falls under the
de minimis transactions exemption and is fully exempt under Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other connected transactions/continuing

connected transactions which are required to be disclosed in this annual report in
accordance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Name of shareholder

Silver Crown

Well Feel Group Limited
(“Well Feel”)

HSBC International Trustee Limited
(“HSBC International”)

Silver Crown 2 2 #B 2 81T A& 2N A Well FeeliF
A -+ MWell Feel JJHSBC International Z & &
M AR o RIEEF RS GEHEXVIBIEX
ZHRTE + Well Feel XHSBC International & B
AR ER 2 M Silver Crown# Bz 2 FTA
AARRDFEE R
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests or Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

Other than disclosed above under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive Officer’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and other substantial shareholders’ interests disclosed in the following
table, at 31st March, 2023, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed that the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the directors and the chief executive
officer) of any other relevant interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company.

AATRE BT
FEAECRT REBDE
ZRREE Percentage of the

Number of issued

gt HEEtE

Capacity/Nature of interest

issued share capital

ordinary shares held of the Company

BEn#EAA 1,393,347,737 55.34%
Beneficial owner
{2 W (AT ) 1,393,347,737 55.34%
Interest of a controlled

corporation (Note)
fEEA(HtaE) 1,393,347,737 55.34%

Trustee (Note)

Note:

The entire issued share capital of Silver Crown was held by Well Feel which in turn was
a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC International. By virtue of the provisions of Part
XV of the SFO, each of Well Feel and HSBC International was deemed to be interested
in all the shares of the Company in which Silver Crown was interested.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 38.0% of the total purchases for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included there is amounted to 15.2% whereas the
aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were less than
30% of the Group’s total sales for the year.

None of the directors, their close associates or any shareholders of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued shares) had an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association, or the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the Company.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the senior management of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are recommended to the Board by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors

and eligible employees and details of the scheme are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31st March, 2023 and up to the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

Events after the Reporting Period

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or by the Group
after 31st March, 2023 and up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young, who
will retire at the conclusion of the AGM and offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditor
of the Company.

During the year ended 31st March, 2022, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as
the auditor of the Company and Ernst & Young was appointed by the Board to fill
the casual vacancy so arising. Save as disclosed above, there have been no other
changes of auditors in the past three years.

On behalf of the Board
Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2023
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company hereby presents this
Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31st
March, 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CULTURE

The Company is committed to ensuring that its affairs are conducted in accordance
with high ethical standards. This reflects its belief that, in the achievement of
its long-term objectives, it is imperative to act with probity, transparency and
accountability. By so acting, the Company believes that its shareholder wealth will
be maximised in the long term and that its employees, those with whom it does
business and the communities in which it operates will all benefit.

Corporate governance is the process by which the Board instructs management
of the Group to conduct its affairs with a view to ensuring that its objectives are
met. The Board is committed to maintaining and developing robust corporate
governance practices that are intended to ensure:

satisfactory and sustainable returns to shareholders;

- that the interests of those who deal with the Company are safeguarded;

- that overall business risk is understood and managed appropriately;

- the delivery of high-quality products and services to the satisfaction of
customers; and

- that high standards of ethics are maintained.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Recognising the importance of a publicly listed company’s responsibilities
to enhance its transparency and accountability, the Company is committed
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance in the interests of its
shareholders. The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions in Part 2 of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as the basis of the
Company’s corporate governance practices.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with all the applicable
code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31st March,
2023.

The Company continues to review its corporate governance practices in order
to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with the increasingly
tightened regulatory requirements and to meet the rising expectations of
shareholders and investors.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiries, all of the directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st
March, 2023.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines™) for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside information of the
Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes responsibility
for its leadership and control and be collectively responsible for promoting the
Company’s success by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. Directors
should take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business and regularly reviews
the contribution required from a director to perform his/her responsibilities to
the Company, and whether the director is spending sufficient time performing
them that are commensurate with their role and the Board responsibilities. The
Board includes a balanced composition of executive directors and non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) so that there is a strong
independent element on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of two executive directors,

one non-executive director and three independent non-executive directors.

The composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny (Chairman)
Ms. LAM Yuk Sum (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. LAM Man Tin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong

Mr. CHENG Man Loong, Monty

Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay

The following chart shows the diversity profile of the Board as at 31st March,

2023:

6
ogi
Female
5 B
FTES
Independent
non-executive
4 directors
35
Management
3 s - FA
& FRNTES Chinese
Male Non-executive
director
21
WTES
1 Executive
directors &zt
Accounting
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The biographical information of the directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Report” on pages 17 to 19 of this annual report.

Save that Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum are husband
and wife, there are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

There is a clear division in the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
which are performed by different individuals. This ensures a balanced distribution
of power and authority.

Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible for the
leadership for and management of the Board, ensuring the effective functioning
of the Board and encouraging directors to make full and active contribution to the
Board’s affairs as well as ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed
and where required, resolved by the Board in a timely manner.

Ms. Lam Yuk Sum, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Company. She is responsible for implementing
the Company’s strategy, objectives and policies approved and delegated by the
Board with the assistance of the senior management.

The husband and wife relationship between Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny and
Ms. Lam Yuk Sum does not impair the balance of power between the Board and the
management as their duties and responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31st March, 2023, the Company has at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each independent
non-executive director in respect of his independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is
of the view that all independent non-executive directors are independent.
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Board Independence Evaluation

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism during
the year ended 31st March, 2023 which sets out the processes and procedures
to ensure a strong independent element on the Board, which allows the Board
effectively exercises independent judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’

interests.

Pursuant to the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism, the Board will
conduct annual review on its independence. The Board Independence Evaluation
Report will be presented to the Board which will collectively discuss the results
and the action plan for improvement, if appropriate.

During the year ended 31st March, 2023, all directors has completed the
independence evaluation in the form of a questionnaire individually. The Board
has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Independence
Evaluation Mechanism and the results were satisfactory.
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Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Election

Each of the directors of the Company is engaged on a service agreement (for
executive director) or an appointment letter (for non-executive director and
independent non-executive director) for a term of 3 and 2 years respectively. The
appointment of executive director may be terminated by either party by giving

three months’ prior written notice.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”), all directors of
the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at the Company’s annual general meeting and any director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the
next following general meeting or the next following annual general meeting, as
the case may be, of the Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of, and promoting the
success of the Company. This is achieved by the setting up of corporate and
strategic objectives and policies, and the monitoring and evaluations of operating
activities and financial performance of the Company.

All the directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with

applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to the management. The Board
reserves for its decision on major matters of the Company, including the approval
and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and

other significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management of the Company.
The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to these officers for the
implementation of Board decisions. The Board periodically reviews the delegated
functions and work tasks. Prior to entering into any significant transactions, the
aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior management, with
a view to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations. Any director may request independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable request
being made to the Board.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year and additional
meetings are arranged as and when required to discuss significant issues, either in
person or by means of electronic or other communication facilities. Schedules for
annual meeting and draft agenda of each meeting are sent to all directors in advance
to enable them to have an opportunity to include matters in the agenda. Notice of at
least 14 days is given of a regular Board meeting. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.
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Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are
despatched to all directors at least 3 days before each regular Board meeting to
ensure that the directors have sufficient time to review the related documents and
be adequately prepared for the meeting. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all Board meetings and
committee meetings. Draft minutes are circulated to all directors for comments
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final versions are open for
directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles contains provisions requiring directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order to
effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings
for directors would be arranged and reading materials on relevant topics would be
provided to directors where appropriate.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the directors received the
following trainings during the year ended 31st March, 2023 with emphasis on their
roles, functions and duties as directors of a listed company:

F 3| 38 F (i)
Type of Training (Note)

Name of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny A, B

Ms. LAM Yuk Sum A, B

Non-executive Director

Mr. LAM Man Tin A, B

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong B

Mr. CHENG Man Loong, Monty B

Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay A, B

Note:

Types of Training

A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars,
conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant
publications

All the directors understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any suitable training to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of all three committees are posted on the Company’s website and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website and are available to shareholders of the
Company upon request.

All members of the Audit Committee while the majority of the members of each
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under “Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 4 of this annual
report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of all directors of the Company except Mr.
Lam Man Tin, the majority of them are independent non-executive directors.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
of all directors and senior management remuneration and on the remuneration
packages of all directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing formal and transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or any of his/
her associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31st
March, 2023. During the meetings, the Remuneration Committee has performed
the following work: (i) reviewing and recommending to the Board no bonus
payment to directors and senior management for the year 2022; (ii) reviewing
and recommending to the Board the salary packages of all directors and
senior management for the financial year 2023/2024; and (iii) reviewing and
recommending to the Board regarding the remuneration package of one non-
executive director and one independent non-executive director upon renewal of
their respective appointment letters.

In December 2022, the Board has amended the terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee to incorporate the changes brought by the amendments
to the CG Code in relation to matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules.

The Company’s remuneration policy is to ensure that the remuneration offered
to employees, including directors and senior management, is based on skill,
knowledge, responsibilities and involvement in the Company’s affairs. The
remuneration packages of executive directors are also determined with reference
to the Company’s operating results, the market rates for the position and the
performance and commitment of each executive director. The remuneration for the
executive directors comprises basic salary. Executive directors shall receive share
options to be granted under the Company’s share option scheme. The remuneration
policy for non-executive director and independent non-executive directors is to
ensure that non-executive director and independent non-executive directors are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company’s
affairs, including their participation in Board committees. The remuneration
for the non-executive director and independent non-executive directors mainly
comprises director’s fee which is determined with reference to the market practice.
Non-executive director and independent non-executive directors shall not receive
share options to be granted under the Company’s share option scheme. Individual
directors and senior management have not been involved in deciding their own

remuneration.
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Senior Management’s Emoluments

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (other than directors) by band for the year
ended 31st March, 2023 are as follows:

BEAH
Number of
employees

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 4

Details of the remuneration of each of the directors for the year ended 31st March,
2023 are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of all directors of the Company except Mr.
Lam Man Tin, the majority of them are independent non-executive directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning for directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors.
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The Nomination Committee reviews annually the structure, size and composition
of the Board and where appropriate, make relevant recommendations on changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. In assessing the Board
composition and identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would take into account various aspects set out in the
Board Diversity Policy to implement the corporate strategy of the Company. The
Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the
Board for adoption.

During the year ended 31st March, 2023, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings to recommend to the Board on the renewal of appointment of one non-
executive director and one independent non-executive director, to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors, and to consider the qualifications of the
retiring directors standing for election at the annual general meeting.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will review
annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and where appropriate,
make recommendations on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse
profile. In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and will consider
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
regional and industry experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives
that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and is also committed to
ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at all levels (from the Board
downwards) are appropriately structured so that a diverse range of candidates are
considered.
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The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the Board
Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those
objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board is sufficiently
diverse and effective to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, and the
Board has not set any measurable objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate,
to ensure its effectiveness.

Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group. The following
table sets out the gender ratio in the workforce of the Group, including the Board
and senior management as at the date of this annual report:

g3 B

Female Male

Board 16.67% 83.33%
(1) (5)

Senior Management 75% 25%
3 ()

Other employees 85.57% 14.43%
(777) (131)

Overall workforce 85.08% 14.92%
(781) (137)

The Board had targeted to achieve and had achieved at least 16.67% (1) of female
directors, 75% (3) of female senior management and 85.57% (777) of other female
employees of the Group and considers that the above current gender diversity is
satisfactory.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out the selection
criteria and process and the Board succession planning considerations in relation
to nomination and appointment of directors of the Company and aims to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level.

The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria for assessing the suitability and the
potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not
limited to the following:

3 age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional and educational
qualifications, background, and other personal qualities of the candidates;

. effect on the Board’s composition and diversity;

. commitment of the candidate to devote sufficient time to effectively carry
out his/her duties. In this regard, the number and nature of offices held by
the candidate in public companies or organisations, and other executive
appointments or significant commitments will be considered;

. potential/actual conflicts of interest that may arise if the candidate is
selected;

. independence of the candidate;

. in the case of a proposed re-appointment of an independent non-executive

director, the number of years he/she has already served; and

. other factors considered to be relevant by the Nomination Committee on a
case by case.
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The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection and

appointment of new directors and re-election of directors at general meetings as

follows:

Appointment of New Director

()

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the Nomination Committee identifies or selects candidates recommended
to the Nomination Committee, with or without assistance from external
agencies or the Company, pursuant to the criteria set out in the Nomination
Policy;

the Nomination Committee may use any process it deems appropriate
to evaluate the candidates, which may include personal interviews,
background checks, presentations or written submissions by the candidates
and third party references;

the Nomination Committee will hold a physical meeting to consider the
matter and avoid the making of decisions by written resolutions unless it is
impractical that a physical meeting be held;

the Nomination Committee provides to the Board with all the information
required including information set out in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
in relation to the candidates;

the Nomination Committee makes recommendation to the Board including
the terms and conditions of the appointment;

the Board deliberates and decides on the appointment based upon the
recommendation of the Nomination Committee;

all appointments of director should be confirmed by letter of appointment
setting out the key terms and conditions of the appointment of the directors,
which should be approved by the Nomination Committee; and

pursuant to Rule 13.74 of the Listing Rules, where shareholders are
required to vote on electing or re-electing a director, the circular
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting should contain
all the information of the candidates required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.
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Re-election of Director at General Meeting

In cases of re-appointments of existing directors, a meeting will be held to consider
the re-appointment based on the criteria set out in the Nomination Policy.

During the year ended 31st March, 2023, there was no change in the composition
of the Board.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the three independent non-executive directors
with the chairman of which possesses the appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting expertise. None of the committee members is a former partner of
the Company’s external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are: to oversee the Company’s
relationship with the external auditor; to review the financial information; to
oversee the Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems; and to review the effectiveness of the internal audit function,
arrangements to enable employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31st March, 2023, the Audit Committee held five meetings
of which the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer attended four
of these meetings. A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year was as follows:

@) reviewed and commented on audited annual results for the year ended 31st
March, 2022 and unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30th
September, 2022 respectively;
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(ii) EHEZE2022F3A31HIEFE (i)  reviewed the business performance for the year ended 31st March, 2022,
H 2202296 A308 E31@A - & three months ended 30th June, 2022, six months ended 30th September,
20229 A30R LE6fE]l A RE=E 2022 and nine months ended 31st December, 2022;

20225 12 431 H1E9E A 2 % %%
i

(i) BIBZHIEHRE  ZHAHS (iii)  reviewed the scope of audit work, auditor’s remuneration and terms of
K HE FGAR + S 4 S AR BAD &2 engagement and recommending the re-appointment of the auditor, Ernst &
KGRI EHREREER Young;

(iv) WHUBERIANIEERS(E  (iv)  reviewed the effectiveness of the systems of financial reporting and internal
BAREEZUG  2ERAKRE control including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
R R B IRRAL ) < RAE management functions of the Group;

) % [ R 4220232024 ~ 2024, (v) reviewed and approved the internal audit plan for financial years
2025 }.2025 /2026 8 B 4 & 9 B 2023/2024, 2024/2025 and 2025/2026;

Fatatal

(viy BHHBEZZEGEHIHBMIT  (vi) reviewed the questionnaires issued by the Audit Committee and answered
BEEHFHSE by the executive directors;

(vip FEHRESMETEE  WEEAEK  (vii) reviewed the cash flow projection and considered the future liquidity and
WARTEBHEERKE - AR performance of the Group and its available source of finance in relation to
HH R A E AN AT A E its going concern assessment; and
SRR R

(vitiy BHEBBALREBFTRILFEE (viii) reviewed the connected transaction in respect of the extension of lease of

84573t T MBI IE M % 2 M BT 5
Rt —R2EEERAZNHFE
ZBERS -

premises situated at Ground Floor and Cockloft, No. 84 San Hong Street
North New Territories, Hong Kong and the interests paid for loan from a
director.

ERZBEIMeE AEES R B MBER
RERIAESMER -

The Audit Committee also reviewed the reports on the latest progress of internal
audit assignments and enterprise risk management project.

BEREZEGNTENTESRERERE 2
BT - BEINEZEEERTT UG

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor once without the presence of the
executive directors and the management.

ARAREE2023F3A31BEFEZEF
KECRBEREZESERN -

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st March, 2023 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

BHRBREZE G MY ERINERE
BEHRER D -

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding
the re-appointment of the external auditor.

B=
iz
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and Employees
Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance records of each director at the Board and Board Committee
meetings and the general meeting of the Company held during the year ended 31st
March, 2023 are set out in the table below:

HERE EERH
Attendance/Number of Meetings
BRRBFAE
B B REZEE ERZEEE Annual
EE2 Remuneration Nomination Audit General
BEENS Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
BEN K E Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny 15/15 3/3 2/2 i 1/1
N/A
MERKT Ms. LAM Yuk Sum 15/15 3/3 2/2 A 11
N/A
HHTEE Non-executive Director
MR AE Mr. LAM Man Tin 9/15 TEA TER TER /1
N/A N/A N/A
BUINTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
BGEELE Mr. AU-YEUNG Hau Cheong 10/15 3/3 2/2 5/5 1/1
B EESE Mr. CHENG Man Loong, Monty 10/15 3/3 2/2 5/5 1/1
K ERE Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay 10/15 3/3 2/2 5/5 1/1

BEiEREEHN  TRTRFAEH
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Besides the above—mentioned Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence of executive
director and non-executive director during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2023 and
ensure that the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies have also been used
and applied consistently except the adoption of revised standards, amendments
to standards and interpretation for the first time for current year’s financial

statements.

As disclosed in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report, as of 31st March, 2023, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by HK$331,859,000. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors have given careful consideration to the future liquidity and performance
of the Group and its available sources of finance in assessing whether the Group

will have sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projection
prepared by management, which includes revenue and expenditure growth of
the business, working capital needs, and the continuing renewal of the banking
facilities. They are of the opinion that, after taking into account the measures
implemented or being implemented, the Group will have sufficient working capital
to finance its operation and to meet its financial obligations for at least the next
twelve months from the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company believe it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2023
on a going concern basis.

The Company’s external auditor, Ernst & Young, has issued an unmodified
opinion with a “Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern” section in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report”. Please refer to the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” from page 57 of this annual report for details.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in the Section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 57 to 64 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young (“EY”) has been appointed as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 9th November, 2021 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). An analysis of the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditors in respect of audit services and non-
audit services for the year ended 31st March, 2023 is set out below:

gt EAER
Category of Services Fee Paid/Payable
FHT
HK$’000
Audit Service
—-to EY 2,400.0
Non-audit Services
— Tax services
— to Deloitte 5.7
-to EY 140.0
— Other professional services
— to Deloitte 5.6
-to EY 122.0
TOTAL 2,673.3

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Objective and Purpose

Enterprise risk management is fundamental and essential to the achievement of
the Group’s strategic objectives. The Board and the management are responsible
for identifying and analyzing the risks underlying the achievement of business
objectives, and for determining how such risks should be managed and mitigated.
The Board oversees the Group’s potential risks and their respective mitigation
strategies and ensures risk management effectiveness. The Board ensures that the
Group has established and maintained a proper and effective risk management and
internal control systems, as well as reviewing the effectiveness of the systems. The
systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives during the Group’s business operation.

colourmixey MoriMor O  VeCKO  wanko




BEERZERBRAA

ERERBES

Corporate Governance Report

EREERABEZERGNE
B

BRERERE  EFEEEFFEAKE
ERESEEEY BRERE R ANAEE
RERERE  BENYE  2ERARE
7 MEBEER  BIaHRER  F
FIFRIE R A SR B A & ot e B 765 B SRR B
BEEMNEDE - BEAEBEZE - SN
HXEM RIS B TR 2 E IR E ek
NZEZFRAMEERZES  BERLE
RRERIEE - MAEZRBZERE - MU
BRIV EBHARARITERZE -

RAFRAEANBEZDM - EEAREZ
BAE - ARPERAFIRRRERERRA
MERAGREXERBEBETBELR
Ao BEEGEMA ARERBEZ AR
BRstERERE -

BEERERRERT

AARMEBIFIN A B LEGRARA
MEXREREEERER - CXRAKRER
TR H4ERRER 2IEEE - 875
EERARAR o

BB e A (TR IENE ] B RS
REBEZRER - BRI(ENMASRER
EREMEK  MEFEREHRIEES
HeRRTHENMBBEZZEGRNES
gHmE - R TENMMAEEERRERE
ABEBFER  Fa8IM - mHEH
MEEE) - RREEARRRIE)NE
BEE S K2 BB B EEZS AR
it

. RAFE - AR T(E/NEERTT

2B -

colourmixey MoriMor O VOCK)  Wanko

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, assesses on an annual basis the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
which covers all material controls, including financial, operational, compliance, as
well as considers the sufficiency of budget with respect to resources, employees’
capabilities and experience, training courses and the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function. Significant issues from internal audit department,
external professional consultants and management letters from external auditor are
brought to the attention of the Audit Committee to ensure that prompt remedial
action is taken. All recommendations will be properly followed up to ensure they
are implemented within a reasonable period of time.

The Company has an Internal Audit Department to handle the internal audit
function. The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit
function and the review result is satisfactory.

Risk Management Framework and Major Tasks

The management of daily operations of the Company’s business departments is
based on the Company’s corporate risk management framework. The corporate
risk management framework addresses four risk categories, including strategic,
financial, operation and compliance risks.

There is Risk Management Taskforce (“RMT”) which seek to monitor the risks of
the Group. The RMT was made up of members of senior management, who reports
to the Board on matters of significance that arise. The RMT reports via the Audit
Committee to the Board. The RMT oversees the risk owners, who are responsible
for inventory management, information technology, marketing and operation, etc.
The risk owners reported to the RMT their involved risks and the planned measures
to mitigate those risks.

. During the current year, the RMT held two meetings.

20235




VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ERERHRES

Corporate Governance Report

. ZEGR L RAEBE A RRNE
RZERBRMERE LS - mE
BI(ENEAEEFIEAEEE
F2023F3A31ALFEZ TRE
2hE B ©

EREENEFERERZZEGHAH
F2023F3A31 A IEFERBEE XA
EmZGHANE  EEeRNEREE
EREBABREARNPERER Y
BT BREASEEHE2023F3A3181E
FEMNREBRERRANDETRSE - 2IEY
% BERAGHER  YREZSERB
BRRFTD © FER INE Z BB E R R
BITER  EREEMEER -

EBLH U EARRRNEE URE TR
HEREEM B ER - NAPEEREMmE
HARRAMEEBERZEE -

ARARRAERBRE - HALFREE R E
RARBARHALTAREREZH TR
AERZEBERIERRBEMNERSE
BRI FAERNTETR °

ARRBIFRBEREITHE AR LIEARF]
NESHIRE S KA - AAREHBRE
BERE - AHARFE BB RERSH
B NMRITR -

HE2023F3A31HILFE - WEBKK
BSEEREN -

Annual Report 2023

. The meetings involved the discussion of the existing risks and measures to
mitigate those risks and the RMT have re-assessed the top 10 priority risks
of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2023.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31st March, 2023. The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as
well as the management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the year ended 31st March, 2023, and
considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual review also
covered the financial reporting and staff qualifications, experience and relevant

resources.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate employees of the Company to raise, in
confidence, concerns about the possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Group.

The Company has in place the Whistleblowing Policy for employees of the
Company and those who deal with the Company to raise concerns, in confidence
and anonymity, with the Audit Committee about possible improprieties in any
matters related to the Company.

The Company has also in place the Anti-Corruption Policy to safeguard against
corruption and bribery within the Company. The Company has a confidential
reporting channel that is open and available for employees of the Company to
report any suspected corruption and bribery.

During the year ended 31st March, 2023, there were no non-compliance cases in
relation to bribery and corruption.
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For the handling and dissemination of inside information, a Disclosure Policy has
been adopted by the Board since August 2013 with an aim to provide a general
guide to the directors, officers, senior management and relevant employees of the
Company in handling of confidential information and/or monitoring of information
disclosure pursuant to applicable laws and regulations.

The control procedures were stated and identified in the Disclosure Policy. The
Company has procedures in place to keep information confidential and manage
actual or potential conflicts of interest. The Company has an Internal Audit
Department to handle the internal audit functions, which reports directly to the
Audit Committee and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and also reports
the matters concerning internal control of the Company for the year ended 31st
March, 2023 to the Audit Committee during its regular meetings.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Chi Ying has been the Company Secretary of the Company since 1999.
Ms. Wong complied with the qualification and training requirements under the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31st March, 2023.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is proposed
for each substantially separate issue in general meetings, including the election of
individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. All resolutions
put forward in general meetings are taken by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and the poll results are posted on the websites of the Company and of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited after each general meeting. Detailed procedures
for conducting a poll are also explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened on the requisition of one or
more shareholders holding not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings pursuant to article 64 of
the Company’s Articles. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Company
Secretary, stating the business to be transacted, and signed by the requisitionist(s).
Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in the
Company’s Articles.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles or the Cayman Islands
Companies Act for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the Company, please
refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director” which is posted on the Company’s website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company normally will not deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:
Address: 10/F., Wyler Centre Phase II, 192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

(852) 2310 9017

contact@veeko.com.hk

Fax:
Email:

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst other things, in particular,
their email addresses to the Company in order to facilitate timely and effective

communication.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the above address and provide their full name, contact details and identification
in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.
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INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP

Communications with shareholders and investors

The Company endeavors to maintain a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the investment community at large.
The Company is committed to continue to maintain an open and effective
communication policy and to update shareholders, investors and general
public on relevant information on its business in a timely manner, subject to
relevant regulatory requirements, through the annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and other corporate communications.

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views on matters affecting the Group, and
encourages their attendance at general meetings to communicate any concerns they
may have with the Board or management directly. The Company’s annual general
meeting is an especially important forum. In order to encourage and facilitate
shareholders’ attendance at its annual general meeting, the Company gives at least
20 clear business days’ prior notice together with a detailed agenda. The Chairman
of the Board and the chairman of each Board committees (or their delegates) are
available to answer questions at general meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at www.irasia.com/listco/hk/veeko/index.htm, where up-to-date
information and updates on the Company’s structure, board of directors,
announcements, financial information and other information are posted.

Constitutional document

During the year under review, the Company has amended its memorandum
and articles of association (“Memorandum and Articles”) pursuant to a special
resolution passed at the annual general meeting held on 29th September, 2022.
Details of the amendments are set out in the circular dated 29th July, 2022 to the
shareholders of the Company. Since then, there was no change in the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles. An up-to-date version of the Company’s Memorandum
and Articles is available on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
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Shareholder’s Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy to promote
effective communication with shareholders and other stakeholders, encourage
shareholders to engage actively with the Company and enable shareholders
to exercise their rights as shareholders effectively. The Board reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy and
the results were satisfactory.

The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining an on-going
dialogue with its shareholders as follows:

(a) Corporate Communication

“Corporate Communication” as defined under the Listing Rules refers to
any document issued or to be issued by the Company for the information
or action of holders of any of its securities, including but not limited to
the following documents of the Company: (a) the directors’ report, annual
accounts together with a copy of the auditor’s report and, where applicable,
its summary financial report; (b) the interim report and, where applicable,
its summary interim report; (c) a notice of meeting; (d) a listing document;
(e) a circular; and (f) a proxy form.

The Corporate Communication of the Company will be published on the
Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk) in a timely manner as
required by the Listing Rules.

Corporate Communication will be provided to shareholders and non-
registered holders of the Company’s securities in both English and Chinese
versions or where permitted, in a single language, in a timely manner as
required by the Listing Rules.

(b) Announcements and Other Documents pursuant to the
Listing Rules

The Company shall publish announcements (on price sensitive information,
corporate actions and transactions etc.) and other documents (e.g.
Memorandum and Articles) on the Stock Exchange’s website in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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(d)

Corporate Website

Any information or documents of the Company posted on the Stock
Exchange’s website are also published on the Company’s website
(http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/veeko/index.htm).

Shareholders’ Meetings

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the Company
are primary forum for communication between the Company and its
shareholders.

The Company shall provide shareholders with relevant information on
the resolutions(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely manner in
accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided shall be
reasonably necessary to enable shareholders to make an informed decision
on the proposed resolution(s).

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at the meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings.

Where appropriate or required, the chairman of the Board and other Board
members, the chairmen of board committees or their delegates, and the
external auditors should attend general meetings of the Company to answer
shareholders’ questions (if any).

The chairman of the independent board committee (if any) should also
be available to answer questions at any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent
shareholders’ approval.
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(e) Shareholders’ Enquiries

Enquiries about Shareholdings

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, via its
online holding enquiry service at www?2.tricoris.com, or send email to
is-enquiries @hk.tricorglobal.com or call its hotline at (852) 2980 1333,
or go in person to its public counter at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

Enquiries about Corporate Governance or Other Matters to be put to the
Board and the Company

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the attention
of Company Secretary, by email: contact@veeko.com.hk, fax: 2310 9017,
or mail to 10th Floor, Wyler Centre Phase II, 192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong. Shareholders may call the
Company at 2887 0888 for any assistance.

Note: Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends. The
Company do not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. Depending on the
financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the conditions and factors
as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by
the Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be
subject to the shareholders’ approval.
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Ernst & Young RIKGRHEETFFT Tel B5a: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place &M &EE Fax{Z&: +852 2868 4432
979 King’s Road FEIE9795% ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong  Kiyti—RE274E

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Veeko International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 65 to 183, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st March, 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st March, 2023, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$331,859,000. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2.1 to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the
matter described in the Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern section,
we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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BRETSEE

Key audit matter

FITZETITEONEREBRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEFIZEX BERREUREHFIZEFREE(EER FX)ZHETE
Impairment assessment of the Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets (as defined below)

RER - TEEB T BEBCE TIRRDEERNRERRILM -
LHZ - BEER2023F3A318EEESD 5 A3,113,000%8
TE78,425,0008 T 2 HERFRE - BE MR - RIMRES
IERBAEZE(EHRIICEE  BERRE] REEEHR
MREYEZERAEEE(EHANZERAEEE]D -

The decline in retail business in the year has resulted in an
increased risk of impairment of certain non-current assets,
in particular, the Group’s leasehold improvement, plant and
machinery, furniture and fixtures and office equipment (“Identified
PPE”) and right-of-use assets of retail stores and office properties
(“Identified ROU assets™) with carrying amount of HK$3,113,000
and HK$78,425,000 respectively, as at 31st March, 2023.

REZE20235F3 431 B IEFE - BEEBED HIFHR156,000/8 7T
%:3,089,000/87C * A ERRIZEX - BERREREHFIZ
CRAREE REEREZHATKOISHE

During the year ended 31st March, 2023, impairment losses of
HK$156,000 and HK$3,089,000 were provided to write down the
carrying amount of Identified PPE and Identified ROU assets to
their recoverable amounts, respectively.

EEECERECABERTRASRTBN(EREEEYHT
BERNEHARBERR) BREEEMBNENTEEH
ETEREEGE  AMEERXEEENTIKRDSRE - R
IZRASHEBERULER  ENXRTEEX - HEATR
B BEMGE2ERUEFEREEZR - RAR/RAEZE
EENTIKROeENZSEEMBNRSEESBUNREEE
Bhz &/MERIZAGE B RR R bE T8 R E A b A EE R
£ BMATHRLRAREETSR -

The recoverable amounts of these assets have been determined
by the management of the Group by applying the value in use
calculations of individual retail stores to which these assets belong
using the discounted cash flow forecasts based on management’s
expectations of the market development and the past performance,
where the key input parameters include forecasted revenue, gross
profit margins and discount rates. The outcome of impairment
assessment could vary significantly when different assumptions
are applied. Due to inherent estimation uncertainty pertaining to
the assumptions and estimations required to assess the recoverable
amounts of these assets or the cash-generating unit or the smallest
group of cash generating units to which these assets belong, we
considered this as a key audit matter.

HARBERRGE MWK 14515 ©
The relevant disclosures are included in notes 3, 14 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RIREBIZERE  BMERRBUAREBN ZEAEEE ZRE
FHEEE B RF R

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of the
Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets included:

. %y BEEERFAZFEREEZAERREIHZGFE
. Reviewed the Group’s calculation of value in use, and the
calculation of impairment charges during the year;

. EERTABEEERATAEAEESEMROFTERE
. Involved our internal specialists to evaluate the discount rate
used in the value in use calculation;

. AAEHEREEFE(EEEEEHRALEEREN XD
HFH(E2ZHRETEERH2BERE)  AMSERNE
B BERBERARRESETE)EHEREMEHORR
fl&T

. Assessed the assumptions and estimates adopted by
management in the value in use calculations including
forecasted revenue and gross profit margins with reference to
the past performance of relevant retail stores, expectations on
the market development and the future operating plans of the
Group;

. REASEEEEMEABNERE  EMNERFTRERY
AREE L - FIAHEREERHENTE &

. Evaluated the impact on the value in use calculations based
on the possible changes of the forecasted revenue, gross profit
margins and discount rates applied by the management of the
Group; and

. FHEF A M MR BRI R EEREIHERDRH -
. Assessed the adequacy of disclosures about impairment of non-
current assets in the consolidated financial statements.
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BRETSEE

Key audit matter

REYF2Z1E

Valuation of investment properties

R2023F3A31H - BEEEHEFIREYH472,456,000/8 7T -
B ERTZ61.15%  WIRRTFEEFTE -

As at 31st March, 2023, the Group had investment properties of
HK$472,456,000, which represented 61.15% of the total assets and
were measured at fair value.

REMENGHEAEBRBZENB LS ERMEEL ([ HER])
ETE - MEDIRNEEDERERZ TZR AR (2EFER
BIEH Z2E) - REEREMEZAFEER @ HEMZSEE
ZRAZHHIMERNELLE - BFHR CRZWEAEURE
U ZARZ5ER - AREEREMELTEERAH
BEREMGANEFET 2 BTN - ATHER S —HARE
FHHRIAE -

The valuation of investment properties was determined by
independent qualified valuers (the “Valuers”) engaged by
management. The valuations are dependent on the valuation
method and key inputs to the model that includes judgements
made by the management. In determining the fair value of the
investment properties, the Valuers considered key input parameters
such as capitalisation rates, monthly market rent per square foot/
meter and recent transaction price of similar properties. Due to
inherent estimation uncertainty pertaining to the assumptions
and estimations required when determining the fair value of the
investment properties, we considered this as a key audit matter.

HEARBEEN G M ERRMTIR13
The relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RITZBGF TENMEREBREESTER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITHIREMEGERR 2 B ETEIE
Our audit procedures in relation to valuation of investment properties
included:

. FHEEERN B BN FEMEREE
. Evaluated the objectivity, independence, expertise and
competence of the Valuers;

. BEMERBEE  BEERbEE mEAME  HEX
K5 AL E B

. Reviewed the property related data, including the capitalisation
rate, monthly market rent, discount rate and market unit selling

price;

. BHEARTAREEER B E S GG EMAARANEE
TEFRER

. Involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the valuation methodologies and assumptions
adopted by the Valuers; and

. FHEEGEMBREARENELHEERNRERT R
4 e

. Assessed the adequacy of disclosures relating to the valuation
of investment properties in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Other Information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s report
is Lam Wai Ming, Ada.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27th June, 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HZE2023F3A31HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2023 2022
Hfst FTHERT FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
3 Revenue 4 472,625 499,849
S E B AN Cost of goods sold (242,862) (303,633)
EF Gross profit 229,763 196,216
H A R s 558 Other income and gains, net 5 39,604 27,074
SHE R HERA Selling and distribution costs (189,524) (190,285)
THEA Administrative expenses (73,006) (78,077)
KEMHEANTEEZ Change in fair value of investment
BE R properties, net 19,881 6,096
EWE SRIE TaH{ZEE 8y Reversal/(provision) of expected credit
B (B ) loss for trade receivables (128) 2,000
EXE  BEREEZRE Impairment of property, plant and
equipment (156) (308)
EREEEZRE Impairment of right-of-use assets (3,089) (4,465)
Bh & Bk A Finance costs 7 (17,236) (10,682)
BRERTREF(EBE) Profit/(loss) before tax 6 6,109 (52,431)
FIEBES Income tax expense 10 (1,082) (935)
AEREN(BR) Profit/(loss) for the year 5,027 (53,366)
rEEHMEE Other comprehensive income/(loss)
WA (EE) for the year
BEKELENHEZ Item that will not be reclassified
BmsHA subsequently to profit or loss
MEE Gz K= Gain on revaluation of properties,
(B EEFAIE) net of deferred tax 5,843 51,562
HEAEEN D2 Item that may be reclassified
B HA subsequently to profit or loss
HMEGINETSEE 2 Exchange differences arising on
ERZEE translation of foreign operations (10,245) 4,644
AFEEHEMEE Other comprehensive income/(loss)
WA (E518) for the year (4,402) 56,206
REFRZEBA Total comprehensive income
for the year 625 2,840
AR S @R IEE AES Earnings/(loss) per share attributable
FREF,(EE) to ordinary equity holders of
the parent 12
—HARGENW) — Basic (in HK cents) 0.200 (2.119)
—H#E (L) — Diluted (in HK cents) 0.200 (2.119)
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At 31st March, 2023

Non-current Assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Rental deposits paid

Total Non-current Assets

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Prepayment and other receivables
Rental and utility deposits paid
Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total Current Assets

Current Liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Rental deposits received
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Provision

Tax payable

Total Current Liabilities
Net Current Liabilities
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities
Other payables
Other borrowing
Rental deposits received
Deferred tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

Total Non-current Liabilities
Net Assets
Equity

Share capital

Reserves

Total Equity

Cheng Chung Man, Johnny

Chairman

Lam Yuk Sum
Director

Hiat
Notes

13
14
15(a)

17
18
16

19

20

23
15(b)
24

21

25
15(b)

26

2023 2022
FHET F&T
HK$°000 HKS$’ 000
472,456 447,692
36,352 43,501
81,009 70,426
6,954 7,949
596,771 569,568
93,175 124,945
4,559 2,475
9,209 9,682
30,601 42,395
176 126
38,097 10,259
175,817 189,882
15,443 9,511
44,962 51,361
1,131 521
383,818 375,505
61,383 72,819
584 593
355 301
507,676 510,611
(331,859) (320,729)
264,912 248,839
1,881 2,388
13,790 -
2,096 1,972
17,249 15.810
29,686 29,258
64,702 49,428
200,210 199,411
25,180 25,180
175,030 174,231
200,210 199,411
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2023F3A31HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
NEEfR e
fie fife
Bx  ROEE  Property  EXRE  KERE  iERE Share  RMEE
Share Share  revaluation Translation Special  Statutory option  Accumulated S
capital  premium’ reservet reserve* reserve’  reservest reserve’ logses* Total
(Hitw) Wzw) (W)
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c))

TEL TERL TEL TR TEL TR TEL TR TEL
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 — HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000

R0IF4R1R At 1st April, 2021 25,180 223,654 35,593 4,031 1,668 4 383 (94,117) 196,416
TERER Loss for the year - - - - - - - (53,366) (53,366)
FEEEMEIERA - Other comprehensive income
for the year:
nEEHE NG Gain on revaluation of properties,
(NBETHE) net of deferred tax - - 51,562 - - - - - 51,562
HEENEREEEREE  Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations - - - 4,644 - - - - 4,644
REREZEWA Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 51,562 4,644 - - - (53,366) 2,840
BARREE WD Recognition of equity-settled
BERZER share-based payments - = = - - - 155 - 155
AN ERE Share options lapsed - - - - - - (247 17 -
EEklE 8% Transfer of statutory reserve - - - - - 4,004 - (4,004) -
RE3R3IER At31st March, 2022 and
0254818 Ist April, 2022 25,180 223,654 87,155 8,675 1,668 4028 291 (151,240) 199411
TERRA Profit for the year - - - - - - - 5027 5027
REREMEANA : Other comprehensive income
for the year:
nEEE NG Gain on revaluation of properties,
(g HE) net of deferred tax - - 5,843 - - - - - 5843
BEANEBEEZEREE  Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations - - - (10,245) - - - - (10,245)
FEEBEEHA Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 5,843 (10,245) - - - 5027 025
BAEREE 2R Recognition of equity-setled
BEBZER share-based payments - - - - - - 174 - 174
AN ERE Share options lapsed _ _ ) ) } ) ) 1 i
RasF3R31E At 315t March, 2023 BIS0 mest 0W8 (LS L6 408 B (eN) 200210
g ZERBREBEGEMBMRARA @ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$175,030,000
B 47 & 7 175,030,000 %8 7T (2022 (2022: HK$174,231,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

F 174,231,000/ 7T) °
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VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2023F3A318IEFE

sz -

(a)

(b)

(©)

WEEGMRBELIEERERER
MEBETERERE RRAF(E
BEARZEEMERES -

AEBNERHEDETIME
ZHEA

(i) HR199FEBEAR -
Veeko Holdings Limited#)
PR A B SRR R TR
AU ERENKR AT ER
=8 Rk

Veeko Holdings Limited7
SHEARBANERAR
S - PNGI & N: o
#8 T {8 # Veeko Holdings
Limited 1 TER YR E
BIRAE(ER) ZHE

(ii)

RIEF BARRERRER - RF
Bt 9 AN £ B BE T 2 R S B
TR GEEEMBEFERR
BINETESLEEZERES &
BEREPHEACE —MBEASHR
Al3tE - BB nEEEE
ARH)S0% M+ BI3E $2 1 VE HH 1A
H— SRR o SAE B AR
EAFBEIEMER - A -
RZERBRBETBBRERNE
BRBERNERBERNED25% °

Annual Report 2023

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The property revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an owner-
occupied property to an investment property carried at fair value upon the
date of the transfer.

The special reserve of the Group represents the aggregate of:

@) the difference between the nominal value of share capital of Veeko
Holdings Limited and the nominal value of the share capital issued
by the Company as consideration for the acquisition, arisen from the
group reorganisation in 1999; and

(i) the difference between the aggregate nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries when they were acquired by Veeko
Holdings Limited prior to the group reorganisation and the nominal
value of the share capital issued by Veeko Holdings Limited as

consideration for the acquisition.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the companies
comprising the Group which are registered in the PRC shall appropriate
a certain percentage of their net profit after tax (after offsetting any
prior years’ losses) calculated under the accounting principles generally
applicable to the PRC enterprises to reserve funds. When the balance of
this reserve reaches 50% of the entity’s capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses
or to increase capital. However, the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital after those usages.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2023F3A31HIEFE

RERK
BRBATER, (B1R)
FTPIEBERRE
AERA
FEMA
HEEX  BERREZ
L6
ERTAEE 2 Yas
RIS 2 s
REMERFEEZEDFE

EX  BEREFHIFE

EREBEEZNE
EX - BERRE
ZRME
EREBEZRE
BREBSFEBREEBRZ
B/ (D)
FE B
FEZHE
BREAOREZ DA

PABRAD BERE 2 BB

BEESEYN 2 BEET
REnE
FERD
JEYE 5 7R K E A
PN IER A, (3E0)
EREERKERERD

ENEZFRREM
FERSFIRE N

BREESREIEM

ENESRERD

REXBAEEZREFR
ERHME

ENEBNEH
REMBAER 22 HHIR

RELEXRBNREFE

colournmix &

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gains on modification of leases
Gains on termination of leases
Change in fair value of investment
properties, net
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment
Impairment of right-of-use assets
Provision/(reversal) of expected credit
loss for trade receivables
Provision for inventories
Write-off of inventories
Reversal of onerous
contracts provision
Share-based payment expenses

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other
receivables
Decrease in rental and
utility deposits paid
Increase in trade and
other payables
Increase in rental deposits received
Decrease in rental deposits paid

Net cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Tax paid in other jurisdictions

NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Bt et
Notes

(N

L W

[eN

N D

MoriMor O VOCKO  WaANKO

2023 2022
FHET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
6,109 (52,431)
17,236 10,682
(782) (913)
8) (29)
(7,594) (17,322)
(82) (707)
(19,881) (6,096)
5,044 8,182
73,321 65,188
156 308
3,089 4,465
128 (2,000)
6,082 7,015
1,840 9,094
9) (616)

174 155
84,823 24,975
23,848 54,102
(7,584) 9,823
10,784 5,689
1,203 6,160
831 1,140
1,691 4,834
115,596 106,723
(2,768) (2,906)
(552) (800)
(32) (129)
112,244 102,888
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VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

RERERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2023F3A318ILLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2023 2022
Kt FHERT FHET
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
REXK INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BIA S Interest received 16 29
BEEX  WERIHEEE Purchase of items of property,
plant and equipment (1,613) (1,218)
RELEESE  BFEREE Proceeds from disposal of property,
2 Was plant and equipment 15 69
ARREEBNRSFE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (1,582) (1,120)
MEEY FINANCING ACTIVITIES
IR ITREMER New bank and other loans 96,500 34,000
BERITREMER Repayment of bank and other loans (67,298) (65,534)
FILEOER New import loans 150,670 171,642
EBEEOER Repayment of import loans (154,150) (157,716)
HAENRNAE D Principal portion of lease payments (90,311) (116,988)
BERFE Interest paid (14,416) (7,776)
FARBEEBN NET CASH USED IN
Re&FH FINANCING ACTIVITIES (79,005) (142,372)
e RkBELEEER NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
#in,/ ORd)RE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31,657 (40,604)
FONRERREEEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,640 47,114
HIEERSH o TE EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES (200) 130
FRNAGRBLEEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 38,097 6,640
ReRBeESEBALH 2T ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REEEBBBARR RIS KIS  Cash and cash equivalents as stated 19
£EIER in the consolidated statement of
financial position 38,097 10,259
BITBEX Bank overdrafts 23 _ (3,619)
NEEBERERMIIFESL KIS  Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
£EIER the consolidated statement of cash
flows 38,097 6,640
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F3A31HIEFE

1. 2RAREEER

BEBARERERAR(ARR DRFAE
HEEMKRIAZHRRERAR - Ak
EEBMARZMERAR (BRI £
Mo ARBZAMBERREEL XM
RAGER [ AR ER PR -

RAREERAEERA T REEEZERA
7] /& Silver Crown Profits Limited * % 2
ANEBREZESAMK Y - ERKH
HSBC International Trustee Limited X &
The J Cheng Family Trustif A °

RERN  RNABREKERR (5 [ &

B A T B -
- BERMEREER
- WSS

~  RAZR

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
1.  Corporate and Group Information

Veeko International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in “Corporate Information” of the annual report.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the holding company and ultimate
holding company is Silver Crown Profits Limited, a company incorporated in the

British Virgin Islands, which is ultimately owned by HSBC International Trustee
Limited for The J Cheng Family Trust.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) were involved in the following principal activities:
- manufacture and sale of ladies fashion

sale of cosmetics

- investment holding

colourmixey MoriMor O  VECKO  wanko 20235 4R




VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REMERRME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F3A318IEFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

1. RAREEER(E)

MEARzER

RRREEMBRAZFBOT

ME AR AR

Name of subsidiary

Veeko Holdings Limited

BREFRERAR

Veeko Fashion Company

Limited

Wina Success Limited

RRECAEDBBRAT
Colourmix Cosmetics
Company Limited

Colourmix Cosmetics
Retail Company
Limited

REERBRIERER QA
Colourmix International
Holdings Limited

AR R R AR AR

(Hia)

Shantou Huanan Digao
Fashion Company
Limited (Note)

Annual Report 2023

1.

Corporate and Group Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries

s
EE I

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/
operation

HEREZEE,
BE
BVI/Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong

5
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

HE

PRC

BERITRARKRE

&

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

618.563< 7T
US$618.56
2,400,00078 7T
HK$2,400,000
10078 7T
HKS$100

1,000,000/ 7T
HK$1,000,000

100,00078 7T
HK$100,000

10,0007 7T
HK$10,000

20,000,000/ 7T

HK$20,000,000

colourmix &

AARELEEREIL

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
B BiF:3

Direct Indirect

100% -

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

MORIMOR O

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEER

Principal activities

REZER
Investment holding

RREE

Retailing of garments

EST=EYE S
Property holding

bR RkEEMTE
Retailing of
cosmetics & skincare
products

et R &R mTE
Retailing of
cosmetics & skincare
products

ESEEE/ES

Property holding

RS

Manufacturing of
garments

Veeko  wanko
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F3A31HIEFE

1. ARREEERE)
MEBARZER(E)
AAREEMBRARZFBWT : (&)
31 A
EiEh 2

Place of

ME AR AR

incorporation/
establishment/

Name of subsidiary operation

IEARI = AR AR A P
(BzE)

(Note) PRC
SRR SR EAR AR P

(BzE)

Shantou Yungao Fashion PRC
Company Limited
(Note)

Hist : ZERRAZERBIERELE

Z RS -

PR R % DI R 4% K A PO AT P A A
Ef R AR EENERES

ERINHEERARFAIZFEAELE
EEINFREERAEBAAMDEESL
BEIHMBLRR - EER AT HEMKE
RAIZHBECERBRITE -

colourmixey MoriMor O  VECKO  wanko

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Continued)

BRITRARKE

HEMEA AATEEEEEIL FEEK
Issued and

fully paid Percentage of

share capital/
registered capital

equity attributable

to the Company Principal activities

HiE SF3
Direct Indirect
38,350,000/ 7T BREE R
HK$38,350,000 - 100%  Retailing and
wholesaling of
garments
36,000,0007% 7T ARELER A ME
HK$36,000,000 — 100%  Manufacturing of
garments and
property holding
Note: The companies are registered in the form of wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results of the Group for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the assets or liabilities of the Group at the end of the year.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
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HE2023F3A318LLEE

2.1. mREEE

ZEPBRRDEBBROABTESFIMAES
(IEEEMAE])MRHZEBH RS
ZRA(THBMBMEER ) (B R2IEM
BEEMBHSER  BEGHEU(E
AR ERE) REBEBER
Z &t RAIREE QR GG 2 REEE kW
MRE - TR ISR THIR IR 5L PR A A AR
5 HEREBEMERATFEEFTERI B
SEEBEN  ZEFBRRIIABT
(TBLTNE2S  MAESEHNBEERE
TR TAL ©

BFEREEE
HZE2023F3A318 AL - REERNR
BEBBEREEE331,859,000/5 7T °

ER EER - EREREZEAEER
TnBE e RRIARE AT BIBEIR -
ARHE AR B R D B RN TS EIRATE

ARAEZCEHEEERUNAEER
SREEA - BEFBRARAZEER
BEESTRURRITRERENFESE
HomERE EEECEMKETEH
WiEEE  AEERERANEELE ST
ZEREVBIRREMEZ BRREDRR
RIEARNREEERMESWEITEME
B - At - ARRESRABRFELE
HEERHAEEBHE2023F3 8318 IEF
ERiREMBRERARE

Annual Report 2023

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.1. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment properties
which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Going concern basis

As at 31st March, 2023, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by HK$331,859,000.

In view of the above circumstances, the directors have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity and performance of the Group and its available sources of
finance in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources to

continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s cash flow projection
prepared by management, which includes revenue and expenditure growth of
the business, working capital needs and, the continuing renewal of the banking
facilities. They are of the opinion that, after taking into account the measures
implemented or being implemented, the Group will have sufficient working capital
to finance its operation and to meet its financial obligations for at least the next
twelve months from the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company believe it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2023
on a going concern basis.
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HZE2023F3A31HIEFE

2.1. RBEE(E)
BESEEE(E)
202363310 - "EBKREARITRL
B iR £39,447,00055 T - NEB B B
HIEEEMENEBEEGREINIRLE
BREETRRESE - PHRITRERE
IEABEERBRITHERE 2 ERB
B RiZERBEN MTRRER « &8
& & BURE N B HETE 7] ERER ) 4% A7 15 bt DA
E—HRPRETH -

FEERTELERHNREMUNFTELE
HEEURR Lt AR -

R BEEBRRETRE  RITEREE
THE BEEBEREAETKESE
IEERREELRNE— T BE  WHIER
PHEENFRDAEENDRARDEE
MREEE - ZEFABNFELRARRAE
ZEFAMBRES -

HERBEZEE
FEMBERERBERNEEHE2023F3 A
3IBIEFEZHMBRE - WEBAREAR
RIEEAHEZEHNER - EAXREERA
2 BT E R K SRS 1A ] 2 [B] 3R A R
B EHEER  URGENEAEHE
BHROEN (S AEBRIEEE NS
BREHRARAREENRGRER) A
HBERIREE - BIES LS -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.1. Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

As at 31st March, 2023, the Group had unutilised banking facilities of
HK$39,447,000. The measures that the Group has implemented or is in the process
of implementing include (i) negotiation for external financing, including but
not limited to, obtaining further banking facilities or renegotiating to defer the
repayment dates of existing banking facilities; and (ii) consideration of potential
downside risk factors, working capital sensitivities and identified mitigating
actions that could be taken to further reduce cash expenditure.

Whether the Group will be able to generate adequate cash flows to continue as a
going concern would depend on the successful outcome of the above measures.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments may have to
be made to write down the values of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for further liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31st March, 2023. A subsidiary is an entity, directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).
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HE2023F3A318LLEE

21. wRBEE(E)
GARBEZEE(E)

—BME - REBRERHETE R KIE
B MARNREESHEEERLORNRES
KRS B ZRIAUER - AIARKEE
HEERRHEAHREHRNENIRES
BREHBEEERER 845

(@ HEEEHSHORIESHAA
Z 8 AT

(b) EEMA O RBELENERN &
() REENKERNEERTE -

MEARIRAERNR A — B @ HER
SURARRE BRENFEEHE - WERFZ
EEDNAKBEGZES# 2 BRRES
AN - WEESA NREEZ S EHIRK
LEAIE ©

ERERNEERERE  #z= - /A - F
X REAEBEKE AR 2R ZEENE
SRBEINERBGERFDEEK -
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RPN —ELZEEMED  AEEE
EFFEESRENREHSR - £ETKE
EHEZIERT - B R AR
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WRENAFEE  ()FREEAEREN
AFEERGEBETFENELEENR
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AEERLBHEBREARNEEEENESR
BEEXAGMENEREESHH>EE
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.1. Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control.
When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary and (ii) the cumulative translation differences recorded
in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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EZE2023F3A31HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
22. B BERREEZ2H 2.2. Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

$%E#$¢Jﬁﬁﬂ%$ﬁi€§7kﬁm?ﬂ
RERT BB BRELER

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the
current year’s financial statements.

BEMERELER  BLRIELZIET Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework
EIRIERTA
BEEGELEI6 EX - BERKE - Amendment to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
SRAEET A REREE FHi2 BT before Intended Use
2 FT 8k
SEGERIE3T  ERMSA —/E7TE  Amendment to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
SRASETAR #Z AR a Contract
BB IR ER BRI HRELED] Annual Improvements to HKFRSs ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
2018F F2020F F15: - BEYH 2018-2020 Illustrative Examples accompanying
ZFEHE HELERIFR - HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41
BB REE
AIZE165%FERT 2
s N REE
BHERIE415R
EFTAR
ST BB IS RE RS & 21 The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described below:
T
(a) EBGEME LR EEEET AL (@) Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous Framework

20184F 6 A M8 o 19 81 75 38 & #f =
EZE([ESIES]) 2 RMEA &
MM EREREEREINIER 2R
o MBARNBEENEMBTE - Z
LERTARINE BB 15w E8|

for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
“Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 Business
Combination an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to

BIGEFAHERERELRERS refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset
¢[§<W§E§§&ﬁ1ﬁ2%ﬁz or a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
EZFEBIMA—IBHINE SR o % liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions,

BN ﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁéaﬁ
ERFEITRBEE - AABELKEL
ABESER BBV BHRERE
Z8€) -RES2ARAFHEBENA
WEBEERIAREGENS @ WZSE
BEBEBELEMIEBREES
GOt - BIERB B EREE
A3 ERESRERES
TR 3757 5k H 8 (BIBR B 15 3R
LEREZET) -2BHE2MMmIE
BSIESR o o - ZEFBFTAE
BRAREERWBEBRTIFEE
& T ATERR o NEBE ¥2022F4
B1BsZ BB ENESE A
ERZEEAR BHRFREE
MNEBAHITEEEZSEA
HENNRALE - BERKA
BE MZSEILEAEEDN
AR R R B E -

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
Levies if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HK(FRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business combinations that occurred on or
after 1st April, 2022. As there were no contingent assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities within the scope of the amendments arising in the
business combination that occurred during the year, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.
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2.2.

(b)

(c)

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items as determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or
loss. The Group has applied the amendments retrospectively to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after 1st April,
2022. Since there was no sale of items produced prior to the property, plant
and equipment being available for use, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The Group has applied the amendments prospectively
to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1st April,
2022. The amendments did not have material impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.2. Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

(d)

(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard, HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16 Leases, and HKAS 41 Agriculture. Details of the
amendments that are applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9: clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. The
Group has applied the amendment prospectively from 1st April, 2022. As
there was no modification or exchange of the Group’s financial liabilities
during the year, the amendment did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
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2.3. Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have been

issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendment to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture’

Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback?

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts”?

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current (the “2020 Amendments”)>*

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
“2022 Amendments” )?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction’
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023

2.3.

Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2023
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2024
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020
Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording with no change
in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers
to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1st
January, 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification
overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS
17
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2.3. Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the
Group is described below:

(a) Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and in HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and joint Ventures in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do
not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

(b) Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee
uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2024 and
shall be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered
into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e., 1st January,
2019). Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3.

(c)
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Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current
or non-current, in particular the determination over whether an entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months after
the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. In 2022, the HKICPA issued the 2022 Amendments
to further clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of that liability as current or non-
current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures
by an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements as
non-current when it has a right to defer settlement of those liabilities
that are subject to the entity complying with future covenants within
12 months after the reporting period. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity that
applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously
the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the amendments and whether existing loan agreements may
require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3.

(d)

(e)

Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the
amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective
date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1st January, 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3.

()

Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in HKAS 12 Income taxes so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that
sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits or other component of equity
as appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied
prospectively to transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statement.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input

that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets,
investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in
use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In
testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount
of a corporate asset is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group
of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.
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24. TEETHEBEE) 2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2Ll Related parties
ETHEBERT @A BRAEKERS A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
A

(a) EAFABEAAXZALTHEBR (a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that

FERKE - R AT : person:
) PR ek H R B AL E @) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) HAEEBEEARTES (i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
B4
(i) BAEEIAREEZAAE (iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a
MNEZEEEAS parent of the Group;
54 or
(b) ERAAERIFE TIEM— (b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
TR
) ZERE \ZKE EER— (1) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
B K E R
(ii) —RERAS " XKEBERN (i1) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a
Bt N AR A B (K parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

S—REBOHTRA K
BARKRARMBAR)

(iii) ZERERER AR — (iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;
ZHANEERE

@iv) —RXERAEF=FTEEY (iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
BELE ME—EEA associate of the third entity;

F=NEENHZEAT

v) ZEBRAAEEYEARE (v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
EEBEEMNEENEER employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;
M & S 8 B B AR 1R A 5T
2

(vi) ZEBX(FT#AIATE (vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified
Bl RS in (a);
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BARE T (5)

(vi)  @@OFT#EBIZ ATHZE
BESEAVENRBZLE
B(RZEENEQRHN
TEEEBAS R

(viii) ZER FEAMBEER
X2 A=WNCIIEEN- =10
AEENERARREEE
EIEANBRF °

EX¥ BERRBUARFTE

E¥  BEMREBERARRITERE
EURERESIR - E% - BERRHEHEE
MR A BREEBAEREEEEZNFER
HEEEMNR RIS ME LN EREEK
A o

E¥  BEMREEBRNERRSK
ZER(NEEREER) - REEELS
M EETP NG - £ A BRENIBER
T BEAREHH AR E AR AL
REBZEERAE - WEX - BER®Z
BOEZHLNFTETKEE - AEESHE
Rz RENAEREERFHIEE
WHARERHRITE -

EX - BERREBESHE 2GRS
HIABEARTENE - UHEHERAE R
REREE - MUPARAZEEFRMT ¢

HELHREF ZHREEH

HEBFRE 20% 3% 1= T & F HA
(AR IE & A %)

R M e 2% 25%

R REE 20%

WAERME 33Y,%

"B 20%
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group or to the parent of

the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the lease terms of the leases
Leasehold improvements 20% or over the terms of the leases,

whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 25%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 33%
Motor vehicles 20%
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold
property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are
included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned
property up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” above.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of the lease (that is
the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

3 the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and
removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Retail stores and office properties

50 years
1 to 4 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of the lease term
or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property as a separate line item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property are presented in
“Investment properties”.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures the
lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees;
. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to

exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market rental rates are initially
measured using the market rental rates as at the commencement date. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as
expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion
and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding adjustment to
the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has been changed or there is a change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

. the lease payments have been changed due to changes in market rental rates
following a market rent review, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

(c) Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease
or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components
including contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless such
allocation cannot be made reliably.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component and are accounted for
by applying other applicable standards.

20235




VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

mE P HmR AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F3A318IEFE

24. FEESHEEREE)

HE(E)

AREBIEREZHNA (B)

(d) RHEE

REBME B FEABRI2EASATZHA

MEMERRENEERAHRL - HHE
EZMENFREMEMANEREARS —
R EERARAX

(e) RERERS

ENTREEERS IRETBEM RS
ERFIRARL LA FBENGE -
RANETER I R FEE 2 AERR SR
SMEENRIEF AERBEERR

® HEEFT

i HIRIATIER - REEEHEBIER
—IHEBENHEEETARK

. ZRERIBEENER —BXZ
FHREENENENTHEES
S

. FIREERRE - BN
ERBEREAHENEBFER
B RBRBSES OB ER
BIRFTEEMEE HE -

AR —REBEEARNEEEATH
5 AKEEREBERERTERA BN
RETMREFRLETHENKNEE
AIHEMNHRENTEEE| EIREMR
HERERKTOR -

Annual Report 2023

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(d) Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases of retail
stores and office properties that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease payments on
short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

(e) Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

() Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use

one or more underlying assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Group
remeasures the lease liability less any lease incentives receivable, based on the
lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(f) Lease modifications (Continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Group as a lessor
(a) Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating
leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term except for investment properties measured under fair value
model. Variable lease payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a
rate are estimated and included in the total lease payments to be recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income when they arise.

(b) Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components, the Group applies
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor (Continued)

(c) Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under HKFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

(d) Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part of the original terms
and conditions are accounted for as lease modifications, including lease incentives
provided through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease from
the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured
at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial
asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages
its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost
are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective
interest rate method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Annual Report 2023

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent,
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

colourmixey MoriMor O  VeCKO  wanko




BEERZERBRAA

mE P RR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F3 8318 LLEFE

24. EESHBREE(E)
ERMEERE
REERA AL I RD FEEN RS
B MR T ARRESEEBRE(ESE
BRI - EBEEBRADENMRE
ANHENA WAL KBRS EBRESK
BOF AR SRR 2 MOZRSE - R
EEBFIFERR - BRRS RS
BEHERSERAQNRSRERAMA
B R S EIRFHE N -

—RIE

BHEER RS MERRER - H8 15
ERRERERRILERZZMDERERR
WA AR AR I2{E A AT gE B A 2
HEMHERNEEBRTIRBHEEEE
(2@ AEMEEER)BIE - HZEaY
PR RE R (5 & o B R 2 4 D e 15 L e R
A FRRHAFSBRABRRNEES
BERBERE(THENRKRH) (2B
HEERR) -

REWRERY  AREFNEERIASN
niEREEERR B REILM - NET
AHhE - ARBH SR T ANSRE A%
ERONERESHT AR YRTER B S
EEBONRARETER  XZEEEED
EERARE N T ARGHA IR R A
A BREBERAEEER -

AEBERAEREENA ONKEHOR
RERLD - A RETHERT - BLE
R AE BN EREREEER - W
BBk SN E L HE R AN S B A AT BE 2 B
Bl AR EES DS RE - ARBEITAER
REMEEREN - EEAQEBEHKD
BRMSNER - SRVEE T PAMEH -

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on
the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has
not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance
is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90
days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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24. TEETHEBEE) 2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
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cRMEEREE) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

—MR I % (&) General approach (Continued)

WHSE AT ENESMEEN —M A AT  Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the general
N HIRFME - HIRU T ETEEEER  approach and they are classified within the following stages for measurement of
BHEE S HEAT XFrE(L A ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed

B PEULE 5 FRIABRIN © below.

FIREER - BYREAREERRY REE Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
Ik EEEEEREERE significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
AEMEEBENSEIENS allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs
BIA

FoREER - BUREZREERRBEZEM Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
BUFEERESRHEERER significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
BERRER 2 RREHEEER impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
Medi emeRIA measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

FIEER - RBRERHEEREREEL Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
FRENRECHAEERE) (but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
LERBRERASN2HEAE for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
ERRNSEHENeREE lifetime ECLs

EERE Credit-impaired

BEIA—IANZIEY S B A E R IR A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default that have a
EREATHNEENENSHE o5& detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
EHBEERE SREECERENE occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable

BEEEBATEHM R EREUE data about the following events:

a) BTAREFTALRERGHR a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

2

b) EH - Pl R s g EREIE b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

c) HERANERAERERERALE © the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating
SN ERE 2 KERENIER to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
MEFERIAEEMBELTER concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

AT ERZEBIGMS K

d) ERAERAI e ESRETH MBS d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
FEEH financial reorganisation.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, probability of default, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. In addition,
the Group has assessed the lifetime ECL for trade receivable individually for each
debtor.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and borrowings
and payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the

respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has
arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included in profit or loss.

Onerous Contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured
as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Restoration provisions

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their original condition, as
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, are recognised at the date of
inception of the lease at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would
be required to restore the assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed and adjusted as
appropriate for new circumstances.
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Annual Report 2023

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences
at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each of the reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the Group
has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of goods) that is distinct
or a series of distinct goods that are substantially the same.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation
if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

. the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

J the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the distinct goods.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
income in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment is due
(whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e. transfers control of the related goods to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services in exchange for equity instruments (“‘equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7th
November, 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model, further details of which are given in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit expense,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when
determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on
the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee are not met. However,
if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in
the computation of earnings per share.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes in jurisdictions other than
Mainland China are charged as expenses when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the Group
entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when it
recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and
salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e. translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
relating to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on
which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than
the HK$. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into HK$ at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss is translated into HK$ at the exchange rates
that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries are translated into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into HK$ at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded
that:

@) the Group’s investment properties located in Hong Kong are not held
under a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties located in Hong Kong, the directors of the Company have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on disposal of
its investment properties.

(i) the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties located in the PRC, the directors of the Company have
determined whether the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted and the Group has recognised deferred
tax on changes in fair value of investment properties on the basis that the
deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that will follow from the manner
in which the Group expects at the end of the reporting period to recover the
carrying amount of the investment properties.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are described below.

Impairment on the Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets

Identified PPE and Identified ROU assets are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. In determining whether an
asset is impaired, management of the Group has to exercise judgement and make
assumptions, particularly when assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any
indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use and the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the value in use included in the cash flow projections.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the assets belong, including allocation of corporate assets when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable amount is
determined at the smallest group of cash-generating units, for which the relevant
corporate assets have been allocated. Changing the underlying assumptions
and key inputs, including but not limited to the forecasted revenue, gross profit
margins and discount rates, in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
estimated recoverable amounts.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment on the Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets (Continued)

As at 31st March, 2023, the carrying amounts of the Identified PPE and
the Identified ROU assets were HK$3,113,000 (2022: HK$4,837,000) and
HK$78,425,000 (2022: HK$67,089,000), respectively. The recoverable amounts
of the Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets have been determined by
management of the Group using value in use calculations of the individual retail
stores to which these assets belong. The value in use calculations are based on
the discounted cash flow projections based on management’s expectations on the
market development and the past performance, where the key input parameters
include forecasted revenue, gross profit margins and discount rates. The Group
estimates the recoverable amount of each retail store as it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of each of the Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets
individually. During the year ended 31st March, 2023, impairment losses on the
Identified PPE and Identified ROU assets of HK$156,000 (2022: HK$308,000) and
HK$3,089,000 (2022: HK$4,465,000), respectively, were recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Valuation of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is individually determined at each
reporting date by independent external valuers based on a market value assessment.

Management works closely with the valuers and exercises judgement to establish
the appropriate valuation technique and key inputs to the model. The key inputs
used in determining the fair values of parking spaces and an industrial property
located in Hong Kong include market observable transactions of similar properties
and taking into account of the differences in the location and condition of the
investment properties under direct comparison approach. The key inputs used
in determining the fair value of the commercial properties in Hong Kong and
industrial properties in the PRC include capitalisation rate and monthly market rent
per square foot/meter under income capitalisation approach.

The management considers the valuations of the Group’s investment properties
are the best estimates. Changes to these assumptions, including the potential
risk of any market violation, policy, geopolitical and social changes or other
unexpected incidents as a result of change in macroeconomic environment,
increased complexity in international trade tensions geopolitics, changes in policy
direction and/or mortgage requirements, or other unexpected incidents would
result in changes in the fair values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in profit or loss.

As at 31st March, 2023, the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
amounted to HK$472,456,000 (2022: HK$447,692,000). Further details, including
the key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are
given in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
3. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Allowance for inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable values. Management has
determined the allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items at the
end of reporting period with reference to the inventory ageing analysis, changes in
expected market conditions impacting demand and pricing and by comparing the
carrying amount of inventories with their estimated net realisable values, primarily
based on the latest selling prices. When estimating the net realisable values of
the inventories, significant degree of management judgement, assumptions and
estimation are applied. When the net realisable values of the inventories are lower
than expectation, further allowance may rise.

As at 31st March, 2023, the carrying amount of inventories was HK$93,175,000
(2022: HK$124,945,000) after netting off the allowance for inventories of
HK$24,330,000 (2022: HK$25,521,000).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL for the trade receivables
individually based on internal credit rating. Estimated loss rates used in the
assessment are based on the Group’s historical default rates for each debtor taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At each of date of reporting, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical default rates for each debtor and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s
actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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#HZE2023F3 8310 L FE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
4. EEFRIEER 4. Revenue and Segment Information
(a) EHXHE (a) Revenue
BZE2023F3A8318LLEE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
DIRREEESH WA Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
etk m R et
Cosmetics Fashion Total
FExT FHER FET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R Types of goods
HE AR Sale of cosmetics 301,627 - 301,627
Bk N SHE R Manufacture and sale of ladies
fashion - 170,998 170,998
“E Total 301,627 170,998 472,625
WA TR A 5 Timing of revenue recognition
R At point in time 301,627 170,998 472,625
& 5 Geographical markets
BB RIRF Hong Kong and Macau 301,627 165,898 467,525
B 2 EAthith & Other regions of the PRC - 5,100 5,100
#REt Total 301,627 170,998 472,625
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HZE2023F3A31HIEFE
4. BEERIEERE)
(a) EXH(E)

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
4. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued)

BZE2022F3A310LFE For the year ended 31st March, 2022
DHFREEFEHN WA Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
bt iE3 HEr
Cosmetics Fashion Total
FAT FHET FHET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R Types of goods
SHE(L A Sale of cosmetics 342,099 = 342,099
B RIHE LR Manufacture and sale of ladies
fashion - 157,750 157,750
st Total 342,099 157,750 499,849
WA T R B B R Timing of revenue recognition
R At point in time 342,099 157,750 499,849
ihE TS Geographical markets
E5 KO- Hong Kong and Macau 342,099 151,282 493,381
FRER 2 o Ath i [ Other regions of the PRC - 6,468 6,468
P Total 342,099 157,750 499,849

MEARLBETSHELEREMS - WAR
EmzfEEERER(NERDMES
HEBORE TR (RN)) - RRME
HEHIEENERESHAARBEE
mAER REEEMBREIREEY
AEERREBRRBANER - ERE
EHRRFEHI0REI20K ©

RMEEEFPHE KB ELXERER
T RARERNERIEERR(AEP
REEEEEERNEBE)ER X5
BRNRERERET FEEE R R
B - REBEERRINHEEEAUEE
ZAERETFTEERENS  EFEEHA
EREEERER0RECR -

RBEHAR - BEISRERNEENRS
1B i AR HE(E A (BB i RIEEAT) o

colourmixey MoriMor O  VECKO  wanko

For sales of ladies fashion to the wholesale market, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods have been shipped to
the wholesaler’s specific location (delivery). Following delivery, the wholesaler
has full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the goods,
has the primary responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the risks of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. The normal credit term is 60 to 120
days upon delivery.

For sales of cosmetics products and ladies fashion to retail customers, revenue
is recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being at the point the
customer purchases the goods at the retail stores. Payment of the transaction price
is due immediately at the point the customer purchases the goods. For sales of
ladies fashion to retail customers through sales counters in department stores, the
normal credit term is 30 to 60 days upon the customer purchases the goods.

There are no transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as at the end of the reporting period.
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HZE2023F3A31HIEFE

4. HEBERIBEER(E)
(b) PEEH
MARRNTEF(BIEZLEREKA
(TEZEEREAD)BEZER IR
AR AE mERIEL EIR D KTz
SDERE - MEBLEARARARENER
E—TREBRRFBEANTAZEEH
gy MZETEEHSEHREIEZER
RAREBLEESE - RHOBEHREM
T ZEEBEESBEEHAE—RE
DB - AEE2FATRERE D

(a) REAmEEEBNARD
R

(b) WELEERIERHEEXEBN

REDE -
BEN B ERES VB RKRME

2APTRAE B 2 &5 BERAAR -

DEREARBRED BBRENE - WK
HEBHAEENFEDN BREREME
MAFEEZE BT EBRA RS
B BARTRERRBERAS  EHE
BB AT IR M At 8 T A AR R B A BR B AT
BaMtEr A —8 -

HREZLERRANEERRAERE
I EEMSEEERBEZER R
E2HHOM -

DHELAHERBRESENFE=THEN
ERMEIEEMET

Annual Report 2023

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
4. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

(b) Segment information

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision makers (“CODM?”), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered. The
information reported to the CODM is further categorised into different retail stores
within Hong Kong and Macau, each of which is considered as a separate operating
segment by the CODM. For segment reporting, these individual operating segments
have been aggregated into a single reportable segment. The Group has presented
the following two reportable segments:

(a) the cosmetics segment engages in the sales of cosmetics; and

(b) the fashion segment engages in manufacture and sale of ladies fashion.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies described in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which
is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax
is measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax except the change
in fair value of investment properties, certain other income and gains, net, central
administration costs and finance costs.

No analysis of segment assets and liabilities is presented as the CODM do not
review such information for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices
used for sales made to third parties at the prevailing market prices.
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HZE2023F3A31HIEFE

4. EXBERTE

(b) DEERGE)
PR a3 R

BZE2023F3831A0LFE

EEE
HIMEE
DEEZHE

DEER
RENFNFEEL
HAWA R e %5
FRITHER

BRI A A

colourmixey MORIMOR O

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

&ER(E) 4.
(b)

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Segment information (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

REVENUE
External sales
Inter-segment sales

SEGMENT LOSS

Increase in fair value of

investment properties
Other income and gains, net
Central administration costs
Finance costs

Profit before tax

et S DEBE Eig | RE
Segment

Cosmetics Fashion Total Eliminations Consolidated
FTExT FTEx FTET FEx FTER
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
301,627 170,998 472,625 - 472,625
- 8 8 8) -
301,627 171,006 472,633 8) 472,625
(1,781) (1,437) (3,218) - (3,218)
19,881

9,974
(6,060)
(14,468)

6,109
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HZE2023F3A318ILLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
4. EBEIRIEER(E) 4. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

(b) DEER(E) (b) Segment information (Continued)
DR R A () Segment revenue and results (Continued)
BZE2022F38310LFE For the year ended 31st March, 2022
{eteim 533 DB HiH Fa
Segment
Cosmetics Fashion Total  Eliminations  Consolidated
FHT FHET FHET FHT TR

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

EL ] REVENUE
HIMEE External sales 342,099 157,750 499,849 - 499,849
DERZHEE Inter-segment sales - 7 7 (7 _
342,099 157,757 499,856 (7) 499,849
PEEBE SEGMENT LOSS (25,554) (26,041) (51,595) - (51,595)
BEMEAFEELA Increase in fair value of
investment properties 6,096
Hi WA R FE5E Other income and gains, net 6,888
HRITEER Central administration costs (6,044)
BE B R Finance costs (7,776)
BRE R Loss before tax (52,431)
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HZE2023F3A31HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
4. EBEIRIEER(E) 4. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

(b) DEERE) (b) Segment information (Continued)
B DA Other segment information
(4.5 533 PEBR AT &8
Segment
Cosmetics Fashion Total Corporate  Consolidated
TER TER TR TR TRL
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
20236 2023
FEZRE Provision for inventories 5,340 42 6,082 - 6,082
FEZHER Write-off of inventories 1,603 237 1,840 - 1,840
E¥ BERREZNE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 1,247 2,449 3,696 1,348 5,044
FEREEEZIE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 36,337 36,984 73,321 - 73,321
HEES  BRERREZ (Gain)/loss on disposal of property,
(Wezs) /B plant and equipment 3 (11) 8) - @)
BARX Capital expenditure
-E¥ BELHZE — Property, plant and equipment 904 709 1,613 - 1,613
—-RRELE - Right-of-use assets 44,403 43,408 87,811 - 87,811
EBEEENZ (Reversal of)/provision for
(BfazE%) /Bl onerous contracts (37 28 ) - 9)
E¥  WEREE Impairment of property, plant
ZHE and equipment - 156 156 - 156
FRELSEZRE Impairment of right-of-use assets 2,192 897 3,089 - 3,089
RWESFE, BEEEE]E  Provision for expected credit loss
et pAE for trade receivables - 128 128 - 128
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HZE2023F3A318ILLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
4. EBEIRIEER(E) 4. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

b)) EERE) (b) Segment information (Continued)
H i EER(E) Other segment information (Continued)
fetm Bk PNERE NG &8
Segment
Cosmetics Fashion Total Corporate Consolidated
TET FET FHET FEL TET
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
20224 2022
FEBE Provision for inventories 2,160 4,855 7,015 - 7,015
FEZHE Write-off of inventories 8,717 377 9,094 - 9,094
E¥ BERREZNE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,768 3,731 6,499 1,683 8,182
FREBEINE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 28,594 36,594 65,188 - 65,188
HEES  BRERRHEZ Gain on disposal of property, plant
Yoz and equipment - (29) (29) - (29)
BARX Capital expenditure
—E¥ BEKERE — Property, plant and equipment 349 668 1,017 201 1,218
-RREEE - Right-of-use assets 40,650 42,258 82,908 - 82,908
EEEENZ (Reversal of)/provision for
(B2 B onerous contracts (760) 144 (616) - (616)
E¥  WEREE Impairment of property, plant
ZRE and equipment 254 54 308 - 308
FREBEZRE Impairment of right-of-use assets 3,882 583 4,465 = 4,465
W E A FESEEER  Reversal of expected credit loss
B 2 [0 B for trade receivables - (2,000) (2,000) - (2,000)
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HZE2023F3A31HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
4. EBEIRIEER(E) 4. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

b)) EERE) (b) Segment information (Continued)
1h R E Geographical information

AREB 7 EEFBUNEE KR KRF The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong Kong and Macau, and
ZEMME  c REBKRBINREFL ZWA other regions of the PRC. Information about the Group’s revenue from external

MER IR EBFEE RS © customers is presented based on the geographical locations of operations.
2023 2022
FHET TFHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
E8 KR Hong Kong and Macau 467,525 493,381
B 7 E A i = Other regions of the PRC 5,100 6,468
472,625 499,849

BMEREAEEERTF 2 EEMEEEE  No revenue from a customer of the Group contributed over 10% of the total revenue
REEEEFEREERHEI0 of the Group of the corresponding years.

EEAEEFRBEE(TEERERE  Information about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets
BERGMIA)ZEMDIKEEMTH  and financial instruments) is presented based on geographical locations of the

B2 - assets.
2023 2022
FERT FHT
HK$°000 HK$’000
B8 KR Hong Kong and Macau 496,113 469,604
B 2 E A i = Other regions of the PRC 92,469 92,004
[FIEES South Korea 1,235 11
589,817 561,619
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HZE2023F3A318IEFE

5. HWAKWsFE

H At A

RITABUA

ENHEREZHERA

KEHREMEZBESIRA
(BREAARZH)

B H R (M)

Wi F R

HEES  WERRHBEE
2 Wias

FEN ZRE

BIEEA QR E 2 B 7
(Hiet24)

ERTRE 2 Was

RIEAE 2 ek

Hth

Bt © REZE2023F3A31HIEEE -

& [E # 32 BT 4 Bf 16,244,000 75 7T
(20224 : 1,365,000 7T ) + H
11,564,000 70 (20224F : ) B&FB
FRRIATERE ([ ) BUF 2 TR 5L
¥ FHEIFTE T 2 #Rh 4,820,000
SR PSS (182 174 4,680,00078 7T ) AR
FIREBFZ2022F 8 BHEES
BT % F 2 8 Bh (2022 4F : 1,236,000

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

5. Other Income and Gains, Net

Other income
Bank interest income

Interest income from rental deposits paid
Rental income from investment properties,

with negligible outgoings
Government grants (Note)

Gains, net

Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Foreign exchange differences, net

Reversal of onerous contract provision
(note 24)

Gains on modification of leases

Gains on termination of leases

Others

2023 2022
FEx THET
HK$°000 HK$’000
16 29
766 884
9,950 6,773
16,244 1,365
26,976 9,051
8 29
3,433 (2,399)
9 616
7,594 17,322
82 707
1,502 1,748
12,628 18,023
39,604 27,074

PN Note: During the year ended 31st March, 2023, the Group recognised government

grants of HK$16,244,000 (2022: HK$1,365,000), of which HK$11,564,000

A (2022: nil) relates to the Employment Support Scheme granted by the

SE P (F8 2 741,200,000 7T ) 2R B
2021 F AL ) o I #E T84 & EE (2022
£ ¢ 165,000 70 ) RUGR B AT AT 5
P Bz ST A R A A

GG

Annual Report 2023

Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“SAR”) and
MOP4,820,000 (equivalent to HK$4,680,000) from Year 2022 10-Billion-
Pataca Fund (2022: MOP1,236,000 (equivalent to HK$1,200,000) from Year
2021 subsidies) granted by Macau SAR Government. The remaining amounts of
nil (2022: HK$165,000) were recognised in profit or loss upon receipt, and there
were no unfulfilled conditions attached to these government grants.
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6. BRBIADGR,(EE)

AEBEHBBAER(BIE) DER
B/ GEA) THIEREESR

EEFERAR

E¥  BERREZAE

EREEEZNERREE
-BEERAA
- HER D HEHA
-TRER

s &0 A A H
B

REEH &
- RERT
- FFRERT

BTRAMAX(ERESHS)
(Hfzts) :

FHEAAE DR

DARRUD BT 2 B

RIREFIET B

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
6. Profit/(loss) Before Tax

Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets included in:
— Cost of goods sold
— Selling and distribution costs

— Administrative expenses

Lease payments not included in the measurement
of lease liabilities

Auditors’ remuneration
— audit services
— non-audit services

Employee benefits expenses (including directors’
emoluments) (note §):

Salaries and other benefits

Share-based payments

Retirement benefits schemes contributions**

The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2023 2022
FHL FHT
HK$°000 HK$’000
234,940 287,524
5,044 8,182
165 179
70,363 62,455
2,793 2,554
73,321 65,188
9,390 11,264
2,458 2,942
291 252
118,110 123,291
174 155
6,933 7,574
125,217 131,020
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HZE2023F3A318ILLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
6. BPHARA (BIE) 6. Profit/(loss) Before Tax (Continued)
(&)
2023 2022
FiEr FHT
HK$°000 HKS$°000
HE R AR Foreign exchange difference, net (3,433) 2,399
EWESHE BREEBEZBE/ Provision/(reversal) of expected credit loss for
(=) trade receivables 128 (2,000)
E¥ BERREBZRE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 156 308
FREEEZRE Impairment of right-of-use assets 3,089 4,465
FE 7 R Provision for inventories* 6,082 7,015
& 7 bR Write-off of inventories* 1,840 9,094
BRMA REE 2 O Reversal of onerous contracts provision 9) (616)
BREMELNFEEZEHFE Change in fair value of investment properties, net (19,881) (6,096)
HEESE BB KREBER 2l Gains on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment (8) (29)
@ FAFERE &8 BREEZ & Scrap, shrinkage, provision for slow-moving inventories and write-down of
BHEIMBATEZEANERFEAR inventories to net realisable values for the year are included in “cost of goods
EREREMEEBARZ [HHEK sold” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
KIA - income.

B REBEREEIED R HR  ** There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the
AIHE AU ADIRE 2 fFKF - employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.
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B Z2023F3A31B LFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
7. ®EAE 7.  Finance Costs
2023 2022
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
IRITERENF B Interest expense on bank borrowings 13,996 7,776
HEAENFEMAX Interest expense on lease liabilities 2,768 2,906
RE—ZEENERNF SR Interest expense on loan from a director 472 =
17,236 10,682
8. HEHERTBRAIZIMS 8.  Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration

BEEMBA - BB QA EHE383(1) Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
(a)* (b) " O ROERAR(FEESEHZE the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
BRDIBGE2 R FNES RITHE Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits

HEmT - of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2023% 2023
TR
Executive director ¢
HERLL ¥4
(fTHAR) B0
Ms.Lam  Non-executive BukgrEZme)
BELEE Yuk Sum director ¥ Independent non-executive director ¥
Mr. Cheng (Chief LS BuERE BXEEE  BREERE
Chung Man, Executive Mr.Lam  Mr. ChengMan Mr. Yeung  Mr. Au-Yeung A3t
Johnny Officer)" ManTin  Loong, Monty Wing Kay ~ Hau Cheong Total
TET TR TER TER AR TER TiEn
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
we Fees - - 130 130 150 130 540
EthEte Other emoluments
FEREE Salaries and allowances 1,560 660 - - - - 2,220
RNERE AR Retirement benefits
scheme contributions 18 3 - - - - 49
HedsE Total emoluments 1,578 691 130 130 150 130 2,809
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023

8. EERTHAZMEL 8  Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Remuneration
(4%&) (Continued)
0228 2022
HiTEF M
Executive director ¥
WERRL 220G
(Tl B
Ms.Lam  Non-executive BU B TES M
BEvtE Yuk Sum  director "*) Independent non-executive director ¢
Mr. Cheng (Chief WXL Ly piEEE  BBESRE
Chung Man, Executive Mr.Lam  MrChengMan Mr. Yeung  Mr. Au-Yeung o
Johnny Officer)’ ManTin  Loong, Monty Wing Kay Hau Cheong Total
ThL ThxL TR THL ThL i ThL
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
ne Fees - - 130 130 150 130 540
Hfppe Other emoluments
Ho R Salaries and allowances 1,560 660 = = = = 2,220
BB EER  Retirement benefits
scheme contributions 18 31 - - - - 49
MetE Total emoluments 1,578 691 130 130 150 130 2,809
* MERLLIRAARAITERAH - e Ms. Lam Yuk Sum is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and her
FREER AR e BB RET emoluments disclosed above included those services rendered by her as the
TTER MBS PR A 2 B s o Chief Executive Officer.
Kt - Notes:
(a) EXARZBTESTHE T ERE (a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
EERARNE RAKEEH 2 HHR services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and
PR 75 1 2% A the Group.
(b) ERARZIHNTEERBILIN (b The non-executive director’s and independent non-executive directors’
TEEME T EREEREARA emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as directors of the
B 7RG ME - Company.
(c) HZE2023F %2022F3 A31H L5 (c) During the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2022, no emoluments were paid

B AEEWEAES RITHRER
XAME  EAEMAREEZFH
E ek BB E o thoh - TTERARE S
Efa] & =5 8 0 B 2023 FF 52022
FIA3 B ILFERETAME o

Annual Report 2023

by the Group to the directors and the Chief Executive Officer as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, neither the Chief Executive Officer nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments during the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2022.
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HZE2023F3A31HIEFE
9. ILNuEREHES

RAFEN ANZEHFATBIEINT
(2022F 2f0)ANRAEIEE - HAAHMNEH
FEB R T EES © # T 40L (20224 ¢ 3
f)&EEHFATOMSMT

e IR RERZENK
HAwtaF

SR IVIAR 2 LRV FUR

BIRTEFIFT IR

HeBN T BENIFEERIFERTR
ABRSHESABOT :

#Z51,000,00078 7T Nil to

REZE2022F3A318FILER » [AI2f13E
EERFTREENESTMEERE A
ANEBIRUEARB T LB - #—P5F
BENEGRE M BEREMF27THEE - B 78
GRAMNEETRRZEERENAT
BE mBBEEEINRLEBETE 5tA
AEEMBHREROSEERA LI FE
FERIFTHAHNES T HIES O BE
B o

HE2023F K2022F3A31BILFE - &K
EEYEMZSNESFTATIAME -
EREMARNEE 2 FE BB E -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
9. Five Highest Paid Employees

During the year, the five highest paid individuals included one (2022: two) director
of the Company, whose emoluments are set out in note 8 above. The emoluments
of the remaining four (2022: three) highest paid individuals are as follows:

2023 2022
FER FAT
HK$°000 HK$°000

Salaries, share-based payment and
other benefits 3,493 2,528
Performance related incentive payments 30 30
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 72 54
3,595 2,612

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

EEA™
Number of employees
2023 2022
HK$1,000,000 4 3

During the year ended 31st March, 2022, share options were granted to 2
non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of their
services to the Group, further details of which are included in the disclosures
in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

During the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2022, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to these five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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HZE2023F3A318IEFE

10. FEH

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
10. Income Tax

2023 2022
FEx FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BRER - B Current — Hong Kong
RNEFERX Charge for the year 633 748
BEFEBERRE Overprovision in prior years (132) -
501 748
BIEl— H At RDEE R Current — Other jurisdictions
REFERZ Charge for the year 77 32
BEFERETRE Underprovision in prior years 10 179
87 211
REFIB (A aE25) Deferred tax (note 25) 494 (24)
1,082 935

BALEE—EHEARAFNBSRMAS T
WEEREEIN  REFAREBELZ
it FERRBUR F1216.5% (20224 : 16.5%)
ZHERBEREFGEH - ZMBARNY
2,000,0007% 7T (20224 : 2,000,0007% 7T ) &
SRR N1R8.25% (20224F : 8.25% ) HI T K
fERR - Mgk T FERR B & A 112 16.5% (2022
F :16.5%) KB REH -

ETHRRMEEZHNE QR AEI2%
(2022%F : 12%) TR READRPIF TR - #
MEFERHEERRERBAERE - It
N - RELE2023F K 202263 A318 IEF
B BRMGRARBEREETIAET
ERBERET  ERBERANEEER
600,00072 P9 % (8% 14582,0007%870) * B
i1 600,000 P9 (1855 74582,0007% 7T ) K
i R BIHR B E 5 R 12% (20224 © 12% )
i o

RIBChE AR LB ZEREREN( B
EREBUED) REEMGFZERAA -
BT A A 2 B R R 25% (2022 6F ¢
25%) °

Annual Report 2023

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits
of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2022: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%).

Certain subsidiaries operating in Macau are subject to Macau complementary tax
of 12%(2022: 12%), subject to finalisation of the tax liability with the relevant tax
authority. In addition, for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2022, a special
complementary tax incentive was provided to the effect that the tax-free income
threshold was Macau Pataca (“MOP”) 600,000 (equivalent to HK$582,000) with
profit above MOP600,000 (equivalent to HK$582,000) being taxed at a fixed rate
of 12%(2022: 12%).

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC subsidiaries is
25%(2022: 25%).

colourmixey MoriMor O  VeCKO  wanko




mE P RR M

BEERZERBRAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F3A31HIEFE

10. RIEH(E)

REFZHESHAT BGEREEME
ARARZBBATER,(BE) BEM

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

10.

Income Tax (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss) before tax
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

™ follows:
2023 2022
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BREBATRF(E18) Profit/(loss) before tax 6,109 (52,431)
REBNEHBIE16.5%TEHE  Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% 1,008 (8,651)
BAREMAEEENERZ Effect of different tax rates applicable to
ENCEEs 7 operations in other jurisdictions (25) 215

PBMEM S AR L 2 B2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax

purposes 2,555 2,239
PHEmM S EERRWAZTIEFZE  Tax effect of income not taxable for tax

purposes (6,539) 4,172)
B ST A R IR 2 FIEE 18 Utilisation of tax losses previously not

recognised (1,805) (559)
MABRZHEBEZHRBYE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 10,238 21,868
AR Z AR SR ERE Tax effect of deductible temporary

I difference not recognised (4,035) (9,989)

AR AT AR RO BN AR B Adjustments in respect of current tax of

previous periods (132) 179
NEHMBE, oz B E Tax effect of the two-tiered profit tax rates

regime/tax exemption (183) (195)
AEFERFEFHS Income tax expense for the year 1,082 935

’RE

AAREEZZEARAKRMEBRE
B EERSHEMW(2022F - &) 2
EREPFSIRE2023FRARE A HD
12,590,0007% 7T (2022 4F : #) « AT
RERERFAFTFAS LiE  URES
SR ERMBIKMNRSEREBEE - A
ARIERET N E AR E R £/ B2+ 25
ZEE - FAIEE -

11. 11. Dividends

The 2023 final dividend of HKO0.5 cent per share (2022: nil) totalling
approximately HK$12,590,000 (2022: nil) in cash has been proposed by the
directors of the Company to be paid out of the share premium account of the
Company and is subject to the approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
annual general meeting and confirmation by the Board that immediately following
the date on which the final dividend is to be paid, the Company shall be able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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HZE2023F3A318IEFE

12. SREAN(FE)

BREARZEF(2022F : FREER) ST
BERFANG AR L BERES ABLTE
A58 F1)5,027,0007 7T (20224 © SN EE
53,366,000/ 7T ) & B 817 L @A hnE 15
#02,518,001,3340% (20224F : 2,518,001,334
RR)FTHE o

HRG) T EEHE2023F3A318LFEE 2
BREERTRERRARA R ZERE
SRITE  ARAZEEREZTEESR
RO REZE2023F3A31 8 IEFE 2 F19
& RG)sTEHEZE2022F3831 8 IEF
EEREEEERTERSIANARZER
R  ARTEZSERENE
BREEGRLD  MIEUEE2023F R
20223 A31IBIEFEZNNERERR
M,/ (E18) & B T #ERE -

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
12. Earnings/(Loss) Per Share

The calculation of basic earnings per share (2022: loss per share) amounts
is based on the profit for the year of HK$5,027,000 (2022: loss for the year
of HK$53,366,000) attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 2,518,001,334 (2022:
2,518,001,334) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts
presented for the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2022 in respect of dilution as
(i) the calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st March, 2023
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options because exercise
price of those options was higher than the average market price for shares for the
year ended 31st March, 2023; and (ii) the calculation of diluted loss per share for
the year ended 31st March, 2022 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
share options since their assumed exercise would result in a decrease in loss per
share.

13. BEYHE 13. Investment Properties
2023 2022
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
F4) At the beginning of the year 447,692 338,349
BHEE - WERRERZE) Transferred from property, plant and
equipment (Note) 3,672 92,287
EE(E RS E (M) Transferred from right-of-use assets (Note) 6,583 8,637
RiERh R A TEE Net increase in fair value recognised in
F profit or loss 19,881 6,096
X ' Exchange realignment (5,372) 2,323
FR At the end of the year 472,456 447,692

Annual Report 2023
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HZE2023F3 8318 LLEFE

13. REWMHE(E)

Mat: EFTIEMEZRERERPE
VEEHREREEE - ttt - N
HE2023F3A31BILFE - E@
B2 B 52,103,000 7% 7T (2022 4F :
46,122,000 & 7T ) K 362,000 & 7T
(20224 : 562,000/ 7T ) WH F A7)
AEX BERREBZIEMER
BEYAERAEE E 2R TR
BEEBREREAYME - ZZFVWER
EREAAMPERTEARAR KM
EHRTEEFHRFBAEGR AR
BIRABARIEME

HREX BERIKEARER
BEEZRAFEERZS A A
1,569,000 7T (2022 4F : 46,165,000
77T ) 56,221,000 7T (2022 £ -
8,075,0007% 7T ) (LR IELE T B H
Bl £392,0007% 7T (2022 4F : 659,000
37T ) & 1,555,000 7T (2022 4F -
2,019,000%57T)) * REZEHRE
2T U A R o

REBZEEMEIMUNE BN —ETE
RERZAEN - IR BEENEAYER
IR FEREENE T IERYE - AKHE
RRDEE R XREAEEANMEE
ZHEBEMEESANAE X FEERA
B IDERIEREDE -

AN BB ) 2 2023 F ] 2022F3 A31
AZAFEBEDBERERNEETEEE Y
B A BREEGERMPEHITERAA
RAEBITEETHRFEAGRIBET
ZEEFE  ZE QRN EEME W
HEABEEERRER - MEBTAR
AR R 2T T RERAER AR

REBAZMEBEEE -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
13. Investment Properties (Continued)

Note: The use of certain industrial properties have been changed upon the inception of

the operating leases entered into with tenants. As a result, during the year ended
31st March, 2023, the industrial properties previously included in property,
plant and equipment and the relevant land use rights included in right-of-use
assets with carrying values of HK$2,103,000 (2022: HK$46,122,000) and
HK$362,000 (2022: HK$562,000), respectively, were transferred to investment
properties. The properties were valued by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited
(“JLL”) and Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited
(“JLLCAA”) based on the income capitalisation approach at the date of transfer.

The fair value gains on transfer of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of HK$1,569,000 (2022: HK$46,165,000) and HK$6,221,000
(2022: HK$8,075,000), net of the deferred tax charge of HK$392,000 (2022:
HK$659,000) and HK$1,555,000 (2022: HK$2,019,000), respectively, were
recognised in other comprehensive income on the date of transfer.

The investment properties of the Group represents the parking spaces in an
industrial building located in Hong Kong, commercial properties located in Hong
Kong and certain industrial properties located in the PRC and Hong Kong. All of
the Group’s properties interests held to earn rental and/or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model and are classified and accounted
for as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st March, 2023 and 2022
have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on that date by JLL and
JLLCAA, independent qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group
and possessing the appropriate qualifications and experience in the valuation of
properties in the relevant locations. JLL and JLLCAA are members of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors.
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HZE2023F3A318IEFE

13. REWMHE(E)

BETRADEE L BOE (RN EEE
JBEAL R TEME) K2)RABREE(R
SINEENEAMENCN T B TEY
XEE -

BERLBOERBBOUDENTIS LA BE
2R FBEREREMEZME IR
ZEEMELAE -

WAEARLERBRAREHBEOBREZE K
BB SWABTER - UERBYEWER
ZEBEMSEMEE - RAFER - FAERAH
HERAIS A -

REEHMEATRES  NERSREBE
AR AR AN -

EELLBUE

EABEAEERATAZEF —BHEEE
ABEABBLCAEMRATS EATER 2
B #% 77 F 1,380,000 % 7T &£ 4,350,000 7% 7T
(20224F : 1,480,0007% 7T % 4,350,000/ 7T)
T o

AR BB ITEMEBERTAZH
FoEEFZEHABBRRBEUMERTS £
ABEZEBERNTEEEARTEZIR]D
5,320 L2 & F 77 R5,695% 7T (20224F -
BFEFRS, 1268 TEGF F5RS,69557T)
T

N EERHEM 2 THERRTENE
ZEFHIRER LT SERUREEN
BEMRTENEAFEELT  RZIT
o o
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
13. Investment Properties (Continued)

The valuations were determined using 1) the direct comparison approach for
parking spaces and an industrial property located in Hong Kong and 2) the income
capitalisation approach for the commercial properties located in Hong Kong and
industrial properties located in the PRC.

Direct comparison approach reflects market observable transactions for similar
properties, mainly adjusted for differences in the location and condition of the
investment properties.

Income capitalisation approach reflects the rental income of contractual tenancy
capitalised for the unexpired terms of tenancy and the reversionary market rent
after expiry of tenancy in capitalisation. There have been no changes to the
valuation technique used during the year.

When estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is considered to be their current use.

Direct comparison approach

One of the key inputs used when valuing the parking spaces was the market
observable price of similar parking spaces which ranged from HK$1,380,000 to
HK$4,350,000 (2022: HK$1,480,000 to HK$4,350,000).

One of the key inputs used in valuing the industrial property located in Hong
Kong was the market observable price per square foot of similar properties which
ranged from HK$5,320 per square foot (“sq.ft.”) to HK$5,695 per sq.ft. (2022:
HK$5,126 per sq.ft. to HK$5,695 per sq.ft.).

The increase in the market prices of the parking spaces and the price per square
foot of industry properties located in Hong Kong would result in an increase in the
fair value of the parking spaces and the industrial property located in Hong Kong
respectively, and vice versa.
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HZE2023F3A31HIEFE

13. REWE(E
WABERALE
AEUREEcEAMEBEMACH
FREFZHASERADENMEEE2%

(20224 : 2.5%) R2)MEAHEEFE TR
20078 7T (20224F : 238/ 7T) °

TEMNRTPE TEMEGEMAZE
FREEZHABEBEADE AN EE E5%
(20225 : 5.0%) k2)BFH RKzmEAME
NFARE 28 TE A REER4IT (20225 ¢
ARBE20THARKET2IT)TE o

AR ENERET - $EHZERA
RIZWMEZ AFHEETRE  RZIAR -
Mm&F AR, Kz E A B ER LA
CEYREEARIENEZ AFEEL
Tt RZIRA -

2023 F K%2022F3A310 - AEE 2K
BEMEETFHEAATFEBEBREFRNE
3E -

RAFERN  UE|FIEZ2EALEHHEK
i o

7N 4 [E 2 3K 0 48 ( 472,456,000 7T (2022
F 1 447,692,000 7T ) 2 I E W - DAER
BAEBRER T —RRITRLE 25 (Y
££29) ©
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
13. Investment Properties (Continued)

Income capitalisation approach

Two of the key inputs used in valuing the commercial properties located in Hong
Kong were 1) the capitalisation rate of 2% (2022: 2.5%) and 2) the monthly market
rent of HK$200 (2022: HK$238) per sq.ft..

Two of the key inputs used in valuing the industrial properties located in the PRC
were 1) the capitalisation rate of 5% (2022: 5.0%) and 2) the monthly market rent
ranging from RMB28 to RMB84 (2022: RMB20 to RMB72) per square meter.

Any increase in the capitalisation rate would result in a decrease in the fair value
of the commercial and industrial properties, and vice versa and, any increase in
monthly market rent per square foot/meter would result in an increase in the fair
value of the commercial and industrial properties, and vice versa.

The Group’s investment properties are categorised within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as at 31st March, 2023 and 2022.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The Group has pledged investment properties with a total of HK$472,456,000
(2022: HK$447,692,000) to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 29).
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HZE2023F3A318ILLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
14. EX- BERRZRE 14. Property, Plant and Equipment
il e HE
REF BFEE  HERHE  GAREE  BOZRE hE &it
Leasehold
landand ~ Leasehold ~ Plantand Furniture and Office Motor
buildings improvements  machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
TEn Ti#n TEn Tn Tin TEn T#n

HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HEKS$'000 HEKS$°000 HKS$'000
HAE COST
RIF4R1R At 1st April, 2021 138,709 110,468 23,156 62,235 24.206 6,040 364,814
EHEE Exchange realignment 949 1,077 §32 65 15 19 2957
RE Additions - 1,207 4 102 215 - 1,568
HE Disposals - (1917) (634) (2,684) (112) - (11,947)
BTRENE Transferred to investment properties (63,163) - - - - - (63,163)
R202E38318 RN02E4LA1H At 31t March, 2022 and It April, 2022 76,495 104,835 23,398 59,718 B4 6,059 294,229
B % Exchange realignment (2,078) (2491 (1,843) (146) (53) @) (6,654)
HE Additions - 1,239 - 25 149 - 1,613
hrt= Disposals - (28,454) (751) (670) (313) - (30,188)
EnRENE Transferred to investment properties (3,414) - - - - - (3,414)
R23E3A31A At 31st March, 2023 71,003 75,129 20,804 59,127 23,507 6,016 235,586
ZHHERAE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND

IMPAIRMENT

R202%4R18 At 1st April, 2021 51,531 105,022 2974 60,056 23,795 5,547 268,925
AR Exchange realignment 341 1,015 826 47 14 18 2,261
ENEE Provided for the year 3,309 3,286 65 1,161 176 185 8,182
REFR Impairment loss - ) - 286 - - 308
L&/ HERES Eliminated on disposals/write-off = (1.917) (621) (2,659) (710) = (11,907)
BERENE Transferred to investment properties (17,041) - - - - - (17,041)
R20253R318 R02E4R1A At 315t March, 2022 and It April, 2022 38,140 101,428 23244 58,801 2275 5,750 250,728
B A% Exchange realignment (786) (2,381) (1,831) (113) 49 @) (5,202)
iyt Provided for the year 1,344 2,265 03 436 %1 185 5,044
REER [mpairment loss - 116 - 40 - - 156
HE /HEEES Eliminated on disposals/write-off - (28,450) (751) (667) (313) - (30,181)
BTRENE Transferred to investment properties (1,311) - - - - - (1,311)
R2023F3R318 At 31st March, 2023 37,887 7978 20,125 58,587 23,164 5,893 219,34
BERE NET CARRYING AMOUNT
R23E3A31R At 31st March, 2023 33,116 1151 79 540 343 123 36,352
R20253R318 At 31t March, 2022 38,355 3407 154 827 449 309 43,501
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14. EX BERRB(E)

AEBZHEETHMRBFUREE KT
g

R E B R AR E (833,116,000 7T (2022
4 : 38,355,000/ 0) 2 FHE T RIEF -
RS AR BER T H —RRTALE RS

(PfF&E29) °

REBZE2023F3A318IEFEE @ FAEE
2,103,000 7T (20224 : 46,122,000 7T )
ZHELTHREFEEBEREAME &
HE YW ER1,569,0007 7T (2022 4F -
46,165,000 7T ) LA K A8 B IR 3E 77 I8 7 X
392,000 7T (2022 4F : 659,000/ 7T ) 7Y H
fh 2 E AP FER ©

ERBIZER  BERRMHMN
REMAZEAREEZRHE
B
ERAEREETEEERHIRRARE &
EERRARETRLHEERRMAE
TEEMEITRERS

fish 7~ AT BE Al 5T — TR B & EE /) ] W Bl &
B AAEEGEGTZBEEAEMBNRS
ELXBMHNAKREESRE ReEEEMK
ARESEEREBFEREENEERE - %
BN EERAENEASEEREZ 2T
BlzReREER  WREKRTHEH
M2023F3 A3 AMBMATRENTE
F132%E15.0% (20225 : BF11.9%%E
15.0%) 7% - MAEEBEREFNE KSR
ERHAMSERERTEEHZBTREM
i
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings are located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group has pledged leasehold land and buildings with a carrying value of
HK$33,116,000 (2022: HK$38,355,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 29).

During the year ended 31st March, 2023, leasehold land and buildings with
a carrying value of HK$2,103,000 (2022: HK$46,122,000) was transferred
to investment properties resulting in a gain on revaluation of properties of
HK$1,569,000 (2022: HK$46,165,000), and the related deferred tax charge of
HK$392,000 (2022: HK$659,000) recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment assessment of the Identified PPE and the Identified
ROU assets

Giving the underperformance of the Group’s certain retail stores, management
concluded there was indication for impairment and performed impairment
assessment for all retail stores in Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the assets belong to when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually. The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculations using cash flow projections based on forecasts
approved by the management of the Group covering the remaining lease terms with
a pre-tax discount rate ranging from 13.2% to 15.0% per annum (2022: 11.9% to
15.0% per annum) as at 31st March, 2023. The forecasted revenue and gross profit
margin have been determined with reference to the expected market development
and the past performance of the retail stores.
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14. EX BERRB(E)

Embl 2 EE - BERREL
RE#B 2 EAEEE ZRE
A G (&)

EEEREHIZESE  BERREAR
BEHRzEREEEZAINE S EET
AR (AR KM 1SATiRE) -
HERMEESD 5 A3,113,0007 7T (2022 4F -
4,837,000 7 7T ) K 78,425,000 7 7T (2022
F : 67,089,000/8 ) * KLHIBR BEFTITE
MO EEIE D B A175,454,0007%8 7T (2022
4 1 206,838,000/ 7T ) [2 455,658,000 T
(20224 : 402,537,000/ 7T) °

BEIEER  AEEEEERAARE TR
SEEBENMARESERNEAERRD
B RESHECIEZEHNZEE - W
EREBHEREBN2FAEEE 2SR
Al AEFEREEENNERAETSHRE
BRREFEAERE  EQFEBERESRAE
BrzeBRIEZERE - BEEREER
HERAHE EDRIEREZAZEE
BERSERBHNZERAREEZR
B 2 BB & 18 5 156,000/ 7T (2022 F -
308,0007 7T ) 3,089,0007% 7t (2022 4F :
4,465,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Impairment assessment of the Identified PPE and the Identified
ROU assets (Continued)

Management conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts of
the Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets as disclosed in this note and
note 15, with carrying amounts of HK$3,113,000 (2022: HK$4,837,000) and
HK$78,425,000 (2022: HK$67,089,000), net of accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses of HK$175,454,000 (2022: HK$206,838,000) and
HK$455,658,000 (2022: HK$402,537,000), respectively.

Based on the result of the assessment, management of the Group determined
that the recoverable amounts of certain cash-generating units are lower than the
corresponding carrying amounts. The impairment amount has been allocated to
each category of the Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets such that the
carrying amount of each category of asset is not reduced below the highest of
its value in use, fair value less cost of disposal and zero. Based on the value in
use calculations and the allocation, impairment losses of HK$156,000 (2022:
HK$308,000) and HK$3,089,000 (2022: HK$4,465,000) have been recognised
against the carrying amounts of the Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets,
respectively.
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14. EX BERRB(E)

Embl 2 EE - BERREL
RE#B 2 EAEEE ZRE
A G (&)

HEL BT  TEREBRIINEE
T REETEFR - REAHEL
kBT  ABRBEEFEIMBEELHZA
FEERLEXNANSESNERAEE

15. HE

AEBEREBEA

EEBEABRSESEIINHEE L (A
EHASF)  —BEFECBELEIM
REZSIHWHEENKER  BEAFEN

Eo
A °

AEEFTAHLEBETHANZETEERAR
MAZMENRELY - TEEHRBR
EVENTAPBEHIZ4F - — 8= -
RNEBRABAEBAIATEZR DA
HEEE - BRIFIAE TR TR ER
MABRENROEELY  GHFEE
— R e
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Impairment assessment of the Identified PPE and the Identified
ROU assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the leasehold land and buildings, motor vehicles and
leasehold land outside Hong Kong has not been reduced since the amounts of fair
value less costs of disposal of the leasehold land and buildings, motor vehicles and
leasehold land outside Hong Kong are higher than their carrying amounts.

15. Leases

Group as a lessee

Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leasehold land outside Hong
Kong from the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments
will be made under the terms of these land leases.

The Group has lease contracts for various items of retail stores and office
properties in its operations. Leases of retail stores and office properties generally
have lease terms between 1 and 4 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There are several
lease contracts that include extension options and variable lease payments, which
are further discussed below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.
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15. #HE(#E)

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
15. Leases (Continued)

NEBEAEBA(E) Group as a lessee (Continued)
(a) EHRELE (a) Right-of-use assets

BEBEIM ZEEHR

HELT WOEYE et
Leasehold Retail stores
land outside and office
Hong Kong properties Total
FHT FHT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
M20215F4H18 At st April, 2021 3,912 54,134 58,046
[ H 38 Exchange realignment 133 15 148
ANE(BEXEHEEF 27%) Additions (including adjustments
arising from lease modification) - 82,908 82,908
MEz®IE Termination of leases - 461) 461)
WERX Depreciation charge (146) (65,042) (65,188)
EHER R EEE Impairment loss recognised _ (4,465) (4,465)
HEGEYE Transferred to investment properties (562) - (562)
R2022F3 318 & At 31st March, 2022 and
20224 H1H 1st April, 2022 3,337 67,089 70,426
FEE 5, 2 Exchange realignment 273) (123) (396)
AE(BEKEHEEET2H%)  Additions (including adjustments
arising from lease modification) - 87,811 87,811

HEZ&IE Termination of leases - (60) (60)
WERX Depreciation charge (118) (73,203) (73,321)
EERZBEER Impairment loss recognised - (3,089) (3,089)
R E Y Transferred to investment properties (362) - (362)
720235F3831H At 31st March, 2023 2,584 78,425 81,009

M2023F3A318 © AEBEEKREEE
2,584,000/ 7T (20224F : 3,337,000/ ) H)
FERAEEE  UBRSAEEERTH—K
RITRLE e (Mi7E29) ©

As at 31st March, 2023, the Group has pledged right-of-use assets with a carrying
value of HK$2,584,000 (2022: HK$3,337,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 29).

REZ2023F3831 8 IEFE @ 5T AR
FA#E B E B IR E 4362,00078 7T (2022
F 1 562,000/ L) 2 THfFAEEERE
BWEME - FRAREEZAFEBRAKE
6,221,0007% 7T (20224F : 8,075,000/ 7T ) A
T2 B8 9 E 77 7B A 21,555,000 7T (2022
& 12,019,000 L) ERERATEMS
HERAFER -

During the year ended 31st March, 2023, the land use rights included in right-
of-use assets with a carrying amount of HK$362,000 (2022: HK$562,000) was
transferred to investment properties. The fair value gain of right-of-use assets
of HK$6,221,000 (2022: HK$8,075,000), and the related deferred tax charge of
HK$1,555,000 (2022: HK$2,019,000) was recognised in other comprehensive
income at the date of transfer.
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HZE2023F3A31HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023

15. #H&EE) 15. Leases (Continued)

NEBEAEBA(E) Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a) (EAELE (&) (a)  Right-of-use assets (Continued)

EHBCEY HERREBEURCHAIE Impairment assessment of the Identified PPE and the Identified ROU assets
FREEEZRENL

NAEE BRI HRRZFERESEN During the year, impairment of HK$3,089,000 (2022: HK$4,465,000) was
3 1E.3,089,000/%8 7T (2022 4F : 4,465,000/8 recognised to Identified ROU assets, and details please refer to note 14.
JT) » HEE2RHMEL4

(b) HEAME (b) Lease liabilities
RAFEE  HEBEMEEENRESM  The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the year are as
T follows:
2023 2022
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
F4] At the beginning of the year 102,077 155,316
R Exchange realignment 31 16
Mg New leases 22,182 19,214
RARFE E R 2 F S8 1E Accretion of interest recognised during
the year 2,768 2,906
INES Payments (93,079) (119,894)
HEERT Lease modification 57,152 44,519
FR At the end of the year 91,069 102,077
bax iy Analysed into:
mEE D Current portion 61,383 72,819
IEmENEB D Non-current portion 29,686 29,258
91,069 102,077
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HZE2023F3A318IEFE

15. ME(~E
AEBEAEBEAE)

()  HEEREGE)
HERBRZHBRIFTMOT

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
15. Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b)

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as follows:

Lease liabilities (Continued)

2023 2022

FERT FHT

HK$°000 HK$’000

15 AR Within one year 61,383 72,819
FoF In the second year 23,589 23,608
EI3RFESF(RIEERME) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 6,097 5,650
91,069 102,077

EAREE A ENINETFIIIE S EREF
RN F2.46% 2 5.73% (20224 : 2.15% &
4.85%) 15 o

ZIRHEEERIEEE LI ERHE
MWHEEENNEAT

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities range
from 2.46% to 5.73% (2022: 2.15% to 4.85%) per annum.

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

2023 2022
FTER FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT HK$ 12,483 7,876
©) REZTPEIZNHERBEN (c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as follows:
™
2023 2022
FTHERT FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
HEAERS Interest on lease liabilities 2,768 2,906
TRELETERX Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 73,321 65,188
BRI & 2 W= Gains on modification of leases (7,594) (17,322)
BLIERE 2 W Gains on termination of leases (82) (707)
B HITE BB M Expense relating to short-term leases* 8,106 10,429
TEAFAE B G E 2 AI#ME[E* Variable lease payment not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities* 1,284 835
EREEEZRE Impairment of right-of-use assets 3,089 4,465
80,892 65,794
? ZEHEBF ARG [HERDHK & These items are included in “Selling and distribution costs” in profit or loss.

IR -
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HZE2023F3A31HIEFE

15. #HE(Z&

FEBEREEAE)

&) EHEEE
AEEHSATEERAE ABENER
- RS EBRNARSERSEELE
FRAEHANLERTIHETRA - &
SR B R HE AR SR O ) KT
- MBI ARSI -

AEEREERKABFHERE R E R
EETTREHERER - LAKERESHE
HHEE 1T E R E A R REE (S

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
15. Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(d) Extension options

The Group has extension options in a number of leases for retail stores. These are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in
the Group’s operations. The majority of extension held are exercisable only at the
option of the Group and not by the respective lessors.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it is reasonably certain
to exercise the extension options. The potential exposures to these future lease
payments for extension options in which the Group is not reasonably certain to

REEER BT exercise is summarised below:
2023 2022
Rt AHE RTARE
BENEE BENEE
ERANEE ARHEE BRANHEE AREE
8 ARCGEKHER) BE ARGRITR)*
Potential Potential
future lease future lease
payments not payments not
Lease included in Lease included in
liabilities lease liabilities liabilities  lease liabilities
recognised (undiscounted) recognised (undiscounted)*
TR TER THT THT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
NRBEENTEES Retail stores in Hong Kong - - 1,764 15,480
@ KRt AHEBBENEERKRBEN & The potential future lease payments not included in lease liabilities are payable

RARSFAXA -

within five years.
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HZE2023F3A318IEFE

15. #HE(ZE)

AEBERBEBEAE)
() FEEf fE e (4B)

TREMERITERERNEEMGBH
WK B & R T TE 1 T 17155 MO RE B 328 1 i
MR E2023F K2022F3 8318 IEFE
NHERNBEINEEEE :

REENTE L

HE2023F F2022F3 831 B IEFE - I
ERAEIEERR -

AN - B A ERE ORI AEHIEE
FHERE RIS T RE R

HE2023F K2022F3 831 B IEFE - #
BRI R T o

Annual Report 2023

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
15. Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(d) Extension options (Continued)

The following table summarised the additional lease liabilities recognised during
the year ended 31st March, 2023 and 2022 as a result of exercising extension option
that the Group was not reasonably certain to exercise at lease commencement date:

2023 2022

FER FER
A FITRER 2EN  AITITRER BT
MERRIERE  EHRIERE CHREE CHEER

Extension Extension

option option
exercisable Extension exercisable Extension
during the option during the option
year exercised year exercised
HAHE HAOBE GEROE =] HHOEE

No. of leases No. of leases No. of leases No. of leases

Retail stores in Hong Kong - - 2 —

There are no additional lease liabilities recognised during the year ended 31st
March, 2023 and 2022.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension option, upon the occurrence of either a significant event or a significant
change in circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During the years
ended 31st March, 2023 and 2022, there was no such triggering event.
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15. ME(~E

TEBMEREBAGE)

() AEFBAZRZEEMRE
B EhEsERAEBTEE
MEOERENTEBENTGE
e TXIRRHEAMAEEEH
ENFHEFR - B EEE MK

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
15. Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(e) The Group leased a number of the retail stores and premises which contain
variable lease payment terms that are based on the Group’s turnover
generated from the retail stores. The following provides information on the
Group’s variable lease payments, including the magnitude in relation to
fixed payments:

BRAREEE

EARK EIE-ZhE st
Fixed payments Variable payment Total
FET FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

20234 2023
EME Fixed rents 8,106 - 8,106
ERE iika Variable rent only - 1,284 1,284
FEE Total 8,106 1,284 9,390

20224F 2022
THE Fixed rents 10,429 = 10,429
ERE-4itka Variable rent only = 835 835
st Total 10,429 835 11,264

R2023F3 318 TEEHES
FEHNN10%(20224F © 10% ) 1B
THE R FRABFEIE 1N0.1% (20225 -
0.1%) °

(® HENBESRLBEERGREVS
R 5F28(c) PIEH I E -

AEBEE/EEA

AEERECEHELFHAHLENE
(BF3E13) + BIEAIRBEBERME (202246 ¢
9fE ) SHEE AL J2 418 (20224F : 41E) ¥ A K
iz 78 P B ) — 8 ¥ 3 892018 (2022 4F : 18
&) 25 - MERK— M ERBEFE S (FIK
RS -

As at 31st March, 2023, a 10% (2022: 10%) increase in sales in the retail
stores would increase the total lease payments by 0.1% (2022: 0.1%).

(f) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 28(c) to the

consolidated financial statements.

Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) consisting of 9 (2022: 9)
carparks and 4 (2022: 4) properties located in Hong Kong and 20 (2022: 18)
portions of a property located in the PRC under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits.
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HZE2023F3A318IEFE

15. ME(~E

FEEERHBEAGE)

AEERAFERANEESKABR
9,950,0007% 7T (20224 : 6,773,000/ 7T)
ERFBHRNRE VSRR S -

a2 MEHEERFREN T2EA
F6F(2022F 2 RESF)HZHF -
RARERR - NEBERRRPBEREZR
AIRGE ST E e 5 K P ER R ITIR
MEmeT :

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
15. Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor (Continued)

Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$9,950,000
(2022: HK$6,773,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

All of the properties held have committed tenants with terms that ranged from 2
months to 6 years (2022: 2 months to 5 years). At the end of the reporting period,
the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the Group in future periods under
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

2023 2022
FHET T
HK$’°000 HK$’000
1A Within one year 10,036 9,666
FE26F In the second year 7,048 5,400
F3F In the third year 3,197 2,274
F4F In the fourth year 2,164 1,040
F5F In the fifth year 1,622 663
F6F In the sixth year 1,450 -
25,517 19,043

16. ENFEREMEUWTE 16. Prepayments and Other Receivables

b |

2023 2022
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR IE Prepayment 4,043 6,093
H R U EOR (H a2 ) Other receivables (note) 5,166 3,589
9,209 9,682

FTA L4 sR 00 & B & B BT BN i R AR
Sr A ER S A EGRIEA B - M2023F K
202293 A31H @ BEBELTEBEEM -

ZeEERIN T —HBEARZEERS
300,000 7T (20224 :300,000787C) * EBRA
AR ERRE=ME - BEEHBRS
WERBEREE -

Annual Report 2023

Note:

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default and past due amounts. As at 31st March, 2023 and 2022,
the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

The amount included rental deposit paid to a related company of HK$300,000 (2022:
HK$300,000), which is beneficially owned by the substantial shareholder of the
Company. The balance is interest-free and repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023

17. #FE 17. Inventories

2023 2022
FTHER FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Rt Raw materials 3,077 4,774
ER Work in progress 6,325 10,643
SR Finished goods 83,773 109,528
93,175 124,945

18. EWESFNIE 18. Trade Receivables
2023 2022
THER FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
FEWE 58 Trade receivables 8,377 6,484
VERIEY SRVt Impairment losses, net (3,818) (4,009)
4,559 2,475

AEBEFRENRE KR A K S E R
FRIBHTI0EBZE0B ZZEH - Mis Tt
BREEZEEHNT0AE1208 o AT
ARAREIR  HBRZAHR| 2R
B 558 2 RO

The Group allows 30 to 60 days credit period for receivables from department
stores in which sales counters are located and a credit period of 60 to 120 days to
its wholesale customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

2023 2022

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$°000

30BA Within 30 days 4,443 2,341
31—60H 31 - 60 days 34 58
61—90H 61 — 90 days 3 59
91—120H 91 — 120 days - 17
#1200 Over 120 days 79 _
4,559 2,475
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18. BWEZHREAE)

REBRERNEAMBEZTLA - LR
EXPZBEEERE  UHHEERP
ZIEEMRR  XATERFPZEERE - K
SEeRAEERERFANGEZEPREMH
EEHE  UEHERRTEPZEER
o

20233 A31H - AREBIW A& (20224 -
E)EBERREBE B - mEE BB
Ha LA ERSREETHAR REL - BEESL
KEE R RAIEEER  AAREER
BREZEROAIEEAS - AEELE
RSB A EMERS

JE U 5 308 Ko H b JIE 5k T Y Rl (B AT A
PRI EE3S -

19. BEekFRELEEER

RAREHR AEEUARB(TAR
K& ) EHE 2 B & RIRTTH 54,436,000
70 (20224 : 3,016,000 70) ° ARER
BEEBRNRARMER - A - BIEFE
GNEE B ) R 4EDE - EIE R EEIRR
E o AEEEEEBRUETINER HE
BRRITHEARB LR ABEME -

BITEBTREERT BT ELENT
B2 RITA - AEBZRITHEBRRITFRIR
WATRITERE R ZE A F0.001%Z£0.75%
(20224 : 0.001%ZE0.3% )51 2 FFTHR
B3MEASKAT -

Annual Report 2023

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
18. Trade Receivables (Continued)

Before accepting any new wholesale customers, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality by investigating their historical credit record and defines
credit limits by customer. Credit sales are made to customers with a satisfactory
and trustworthy credit history. Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly.

As at 31st March, 2023, there are no debtors (2022: nil) which is past due as at
the reporting date. The balances past due 90 days or more are not considered as
in default. The directors of the Company consider that the recoverability of these
debts is high based on historical experience and taking into consideration of
forward-looking information. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are set out in note
33.

19. Cash and Cash Equivalents

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and bank balances
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$4,436,000 (2022:
HK$3,016,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default. The Group’s bank balances and deposits carry interest at prevailing bank
deposits rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.75% (2022: 0.001% to 0.3%) per annum
and have an original maturity of three months or less.
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HZE2023F3A31HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
20, EREZRE 20. Trade Payables
RERERKRENE FHIERIBEREZHE An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of each of the reporting
2 ZEREB O period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
2023 2022
FER FAT
HK$°000 HK$’000
30 A Within 30 days 8,214 5,089
31-60H 31 - 60 days 7,027 2,200
61-90H 61 — 90 days 175 831
#90H Over 90 days 27 1,391
15,443 9,511

ENESHBEAETE  —MM308%E  Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on a credit term of
60H 2 EEMAAEE - 30 to 60 days.

21. HiENKIBRESTE 21. Other Payables and Accruals

A

2023 2022

Hat FHT FHT

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

EEtEA Accrued expenses 26,836 23,760
H it B FRIE Other payables (a) 3,597 18,121
38 R AN B Provision of reinstatement costs (b) 10,067 10,855
AHERE Contract liabilities (c) 6,126 762
H b SRR Other taxes payables 217 251
46,843 53,749

B FEBNERER S Less: non-current portion

— BIRRAEE — Provision for reinstatement cost (1,881) (2,388)
BNERER 5 Current portion 44,962 51,361
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HZE2023F3A318ILLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
21, HiENFHERESE 21. Other Payables and Accruals (Continued)
(&)
Bz - Notes:
(a) HMhERNREATTS  B€EAR (a) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and the amount are on demand or
RERSEIVEANZEEREE - settled on a credit term within 1 month.
(b) NEBRERBKABREZ BEHNT ¢ (b) Movements in the Group’s provision for reinstatement costs are as follows:
2023 2022
FAET FHT
HK$’000 HK$°000
FH) At the beginning of the year 10,855 11,028
FE R B Provision during the year 324 901
BB A Actual costs paid (1,112) (1,074)
10,067 10,855

FER - ERRABREBEAREZHERZFTHE During the year, provision of reinstatement costs has been recorded to leasehold
LEABEE - 55 AE(20224F : 350,000 improvement of nil (2022: HK$350,000) and right-of-use assets of HK$280,000
P7T) 5280,00075 7T (20224F 551,000/ 7T) ° (2022: HK$551,000), respectively.

() ERABZHBOAT - (c) Details of contract liabilities are as follows:
20235 20224 20214
3A31H 3A31H 4H18
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 1st April, 2021
FTExT FHT FHT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

BREF Z g Short-term advance received from customers

mEE Retail sales of cosmetics 6,126 762 827

AN BEEERE LMY 2 B8 Contract liabilities include short-term advances received for the reservation of
Ko 2023FEEHAEEM(2022F : FHP)E cosmetics. The increase (2022: decrease) in contract liabilities in 2023 was mainly due
BEHNERDKNEE 258 B 0% 50 (2022 to the increase (2022: decrease) in short-term advances received from customers at the
F R - end of the year.
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22. HiEE

RE—BESHERABERR  REBR
TRZEFRBMI%ETE RFR2024F8 A E
i% °

23. FTRZEITHEE

BEERZERBRAA

olidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
22. Other Borrowing

The loan from a director is unsecured, interest-bearing at HIBOR +1% and
repayable in August 2024.

23. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings

2023 2022
FHERT FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
SRITIEX Bank overdraft - 3,619
SRITERK Bank loans 345,449 330,038
HEOER Import loans 38,369 41,848
383,818 375,505

BEMRITEEERTIEE - The secured bank borrowings are repayable as follows:
2023 2022
FER FET
HK$°000 HK$’000

BRI AR EE 2 A E Principal amounts repayable based on
original maturity terms*:

BER On demand - 3,619
1R Within one year 376,368 308,371
F2F In the second year 1,738 29,690
FIEESF(BIEEREME) In the third to fifth year inclusive 5,712 13,990
SELLE More than five years - 19,835
383,818 375,505
& ZERENIHB DERBHEAER B The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

BEEEHREH -

agreements.
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HZE2023F3A318IEFE

23. RTRZBRTEEE)

REBZIEETIBHFREE  REEF
ME(TFERETAFIE)NF1.46%%6.63%
(20224 : 1.15%%6.00% )1 & °

AEBZEREEERERZIEN - Bt
20234 K 202243 A31 B Ans &

f& e

M2023F3A318 © AEBRENR —FHR
T2 BB - R E R4 FE233,539,000
BT o ANEBMR2023F 6 AR EEETH
RITRE RN - MRRBITRERE o B
ZEVBHRRZIERE  AEEWEE
RAEMEBITIRL ©

BITEEUNAREEE TEEAIKR (W=
29) ©

Annual Report 2023

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
23. Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings (Continued)

The Group’s borrowings are floating-rate borrowings which carry interest at
effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest rates) ranging
from 1.46% to 6.63% (2022: 1.15% to 6.00%) per annum.

The Group’s loans contain a repayment on demand clause hence shown as current
liabilities as at 31st March, 2023 and 2022.

At 31st March, 2023, the Group did not comply with a debt covenant of a bank with
an aggregate loans amount of HK$233,539,000. The Group entered into a revised
banking facility in June 2023, which superseded the original banking facility. At
the date of approval of these financial statements, the Group did not breach any
bank covenants.

The bank borrowings are secured by certain assets of the Group (note 29).
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24. BiE

RAFREFBEFERN - FIERZBRYE
BRBEBREFHNT

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
24. Provision

The following are the provision for onerous contracts recognised and movement
during the current and prior years:

2023 2022

FHET F&T

HK$’000 HK$’000

F4) At the beginning of the year 593 1,209
FRED Reversed for the year 9) (616)
FR At the end of the year 584 593

BERESNBBDRERAEERTHS
EHEENHERERTEEREL BB
HIER K BB Rm RBREBRRR
ENEEERREIEBENR L TA#
FRAPTHETT Z FHAT R - AEBAREAR
SEMNSHBRBENTAHEEER
E I E W P IS S AT R SR PR A
FRHHEZZEERNETRESRE
R BERRAEATKRBEREEER
REREE -

BERESNBEBRBERAEEREHEARS
HEENMBRAERENTEEHETH
ERARERSHR 2 ITRB S TEEA
iR WIENFEF13.2%E15.0% (2022
F11.9%E15.0%) Z TR ATIT IR R EITIT
B KM BARERENETEBRILBESE
¥EER - BEMNXERHTHEHRNHT
BRERA BB BATRERERE
HMSEENTELY  CEREB 2 EER
EAZIERMERT - R20236F3A318 -
B 18 146 4B 5 5 584,00075 7T (2022 4F -
593,000/ 7T) °

colourmixey MoriMor O  VECKO  wanko

Provision for onerous contracts is made based on an assessment of the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the lease agreement, with short-term
leases, that exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it from
all underperforming retail stores of the cosmetics and fashion businesses. In
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Group reviews the discounted
cash flow forecasts of all of the retail stores with short-term leases under non-
cancellable clause in the respective lease agreements to determine whether there is
any indication of retail stores underperforming.

The provision for onerous contracts is calculated based on discounted cash flow
forecasts of Group’s all underperforming retail stores with short-term leases to the
end of the non-cancellable lease period and discounted with a pre-tax discount rate
ranging from 13.2% to 15.0% (2022: 11.9% to 15.0%) per annum. Key assumptions
used when determining the discounted cash flow forecasts include revenue
growth, gross profit margins and unavoidable costs that will be incurred during
the remaining lease period. Amounts are determined based on past performance
and management’s expectations on the market development, after taking into
consideration revenue and expenditure growth of the business. As at 31st March,
2023, the provision for onerous contracts was HK$584,000 (2022: HK$593,000).

20235
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25. EIEBIEH

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
25. Deferred Tax

T AAREENBTIEERRZ T ERE The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and

MBEE(AE)REWEE :

202194818

I8 HIBR

REA 2 ERA SO
(HiE13)

[E &

20223 318 &
202294 H1H

WP HR

A E At 2 E WA H0BR
(HiaE13)

T 5 3R B

720233 831H

156

movements thereon during the current and prior years:

RIBTE TR
REREE
Temporary
ERELYES difference
Revaluation from tax st
of properties depreciation Total
FHET THET TFHET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
At Ist April, 2021 (13,200) 476 (12,724)
Charged to profit or loss 30 (6) 24
Charged to other comprehensive
income (note 13) (2,678) - (2,678)
Exchange realignment (432) - (432)
At 31st March, 2022 and
1st April, 2022 (16,280) 470 (15,810)
Charged to profit or loss (410) (84) (494)
Charged to other comprehensive
income (note 13) (1,947) - (1,947)
Exchange realignment 1,002 - 1,002
At 31st March, 2023 (17,635) 386 (17,249)

Annual Report 2023  colourmixey MORIMOR O




mE P RR M

BEERZERBRAA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F3 8318 LLEFE

25. EEBIE(E)

WA A T IH B RRLERIREE -

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
25. Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

2023 2022

TET FHET

HK$°000 HK$’000

FiIE k8 Tax losses 691,459 635,401
A E Rt = Deductible temporary differences 1,728 4,321
693,187 639,722

A AR RN BB E £ 8664,399,000
7T (20224 © 603,157,000/87C) © EAJER
B ¢ FORPIEEAERY 12,758,000/ 7T (2022
¢ 11,489,000 7T) © HGH3FEREM
Ko 5 HR B P 4 E A 9 14,302,0007% 7T (2022
F 1 20,755000%87T) - EERIESFAE
o DA SHEE A 1 2 A R R SR B SRR
A o MAERL EiIE B ERREE R EE - it
TSR KA e A A Ll B e R
FtomF) o

BRI EMERE - R E AR
ZHONEREBEDEREINEEEST RIS
FrZABAN10% BV TEHI R - B B#R 72 722008
FIA1ARER - WEAR2007F12A31
AZEOARF] o i+ B A EEIMNEEE
W RLERERFTARGEGLY - A=A 8R
EMTENFE - RAEEMS - BABE
#5% (20225 : 5%) o At - NEBE AR
FR B BB A R1AR20084F 1 A 1 A A HREX & F)
BEIRA IR SENTEMEL ©

R2023F3A318 + ANEBE W KRN B
RAIM AR 7 R T B B AR = R AR
5 ik bt B2 A7 A i PR B IR IE R B B
553,623,000 7T (20224 : 49,928,000/
7o) RERARRAEGHILENE AR
MR EECK  WEREB R ATRETE
FEARERDIK

colourmixey MoriMor O VOCK)  Wanko

The above tax losses which included HK$664,399,000 (2022: HK$603,157,000)
arising in Hong Kong are available indefinitely; HK$12,758,000 (2022:
HKS$11,489,000) arising in Macau will expire in three years; and HK$14,302,000
(2022: HK$20,755,000) arising in Mainland China that will expire in one to five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above
item as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the above items can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1st January, 2008
and applies to earnings after 31st December, 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% (2022: 5%). The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by the PRC
subsidiaries in respect of their earnings generated from 1st January, 2008.

At 31st March, 2023, the Group has not recognised deferred tax liabilities of
HK$53,623,000 (2022: HK$49,928,000) in respect of temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries, that would be payable on the
distribution of these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and determines that it is not probable that these profits will be
distributed in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023

26. WA 26. Share Capital
2023 2022
FEx FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
ERE Authorised:
10,000,000,000(20224F : 10,000,000,000 (2022: 10,000,000,000)
10,000,000,000) % & %0.0178 7T 2 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
Timak 100,000 100,000
EEITRAR Issued and fully paid:
2,518,001,334 (20224 : 2,518,001,334 (2022: 2,518,001,334)
2,518,001,334) i &A%0.0 & T 2 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
il 25,180 25,180

27. BIRRESE

RIEARQ R R2013F8 A30 8 RIT 2 BE
BEAELBAZERAZR  ARER
m—EREREEI(HE]) EERE
BRSEERBEREUREBAQRZBEE
i WEB2EEBREALAAIRER
MZEEMEN  BEAAR REREE
BB - ANAEFE2RBERAEL
Y eHAKEELERZZ2BES 2
BEE REMEMATHFTEERSET

Bl

RAR ST 8130 AR R BB AR 2 AT (o] H i AR
T8l EITEER L 2 A AR 1T
KD - BETTEBBREMA R BA QA
BEITRN210% °

AR B FE R AE T AT L 10% R 6
HEREHANEBBRBRIEZ AR
AAE BTN 210% °

RIBF B RAR AR 2 (T E b RE A
FHEl - RITERSTEAREZMAE HR
TRHRBEREMBETHRRFROEE - T
SHEBENEE BTN Z230% °

Annual Report 2023

27. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company on 30th August, 2013, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company for the purpose of providing eligible participants with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and encouraging
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. All directors,
full-time employees and any other persons who, in the sole discretion of the board
of directors of the Company, have contributed or will contribute to the Group are
eligible to participate in the Scheme.

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the date of
adoption.

The Company may renew this 10% limit with shareholders’ approval provided that
each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the shares in the Company in issue as at
the date of the shareholders’ approval.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.
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27. BRESTEI(E)

BRIFBUS AR RIBCRHLE - & AIEER 12
EAMEA - REFEIRNARBRBZAE
I AR B - HITEAS2EER
EHzBRE(BEETERERITER
AR HE ) T 34T RS T RATEV AR R B AR ) 48
o TEEBARAEEHITERMZ1%

BREZITERRERARAREHEE
E o ZHRAASERBRER L B MR
L0F&fEm - MR HBAER - AR AR
BEAETEAARABREZREMR -
REBRE BHENRZ2REZLE
BREOEM B RES 21 8RR -
R BB R A BT -

TEBRERE T EITZARRRG R
BE MHERTIBEZ&EE ORE
HBH - ARBRRMDABZMEL 2SR
WEXRBROBTE  ()BEZELH B BRI
SERRABARARIRORERMEL S
ARER RO FHKTE RGN E
PR ARNFROEE - NAFREEE
M2 HEEREERERETREE -

FEERMEB10RF 2 AR AR B TER
RET B D B AE -

20233 A318 - EREFTEERE R
MARITEZBREEB2RNDBEEH£A
46,400,000/% (20224 : 48,800,000/%) * 14
ARAE BB BETRDZ1.8% (20225 ¢
1.9%) °

RE F2023F £2022F3 A31BILEE
A AAREREFTEMARRESR
AR -

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
27. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including both exercised and unexercised options) under the Scheme
or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified by the
Company at the time of grant. This period must expire no later than 10 years from
the date of grant of the options. At the time of grant of the options, the Company
may specify a minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date on which the letter containing the offer is delivered to that participant
and the amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be issued upon exercise of
the options shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share of the Company on the date of offer. The subscription price will be
established by the board of directors of the Company at the time when the option is
offered to the participants.

No options may be granted under the Scheme after the date of the tenth anniversary
of the adoption of the scheme.

At 31st March, 2023, the number of shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme in aggregate was 46,400,000
(2022: 48,800,000), representing 1.8% (2022: 1.9%) of the shares of the Company
in issue at that date.

No options were granted to the directors of the Company for the years ended 31st
March, 2023 and 2022 under the Scheme.

colourmixey MoriMor O VOCK)  Wanko
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27. BRESTEI(E)

TEREBRAKEEBMFERE B

ZRBBREFBRZEEREZZE -

REZE2023F3 318 LFERA :
RiLEH faES
Date of grant Vesting period
NI7E1A9A WITF1A9AZ

9th January, 2017

2MUF1A9H
29th January, 2021

201%1A29A
29th January, 2021

02428168
ita)
16th February, 2022
(Note a)

N2E2A168
(Hiits)

16th February, 2022
(Note b)

ARELTE

Exercisable at the end of the year

METEIEE

Weighted average exercise price

N2E1A8H
9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2022

MUFIAWAE
202451 A28H
29th January, 2021 to

28th January, 2024

MIEIAYEE
2026F 17285
29th January, 2021 to

28th January, 2026

NEIRI6EE
200528150
16th February, 2022 to

15th February, 2025

NEIRI6EE
2027528158
16th February, 2022 to

15th February, 2027

Annual Report 2023

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

27. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following tables disclose details of options granted under the Scheme held by

employees of the Group and movements in such holdings.

During the year ended 31st March, 2023:

fifEHm

Exercise period

ANFIAIAE
N4E1 AsH
9th January, 2022 to

8th January, 2024

NUFIAVAE
20261 A28
29th January, 2024 to

28th January, 2026

02651829 %
2028514288
29th January, 2026 to

28th January, 2028

2005F2A16HE
2001528158

16th February, 2025 to
15th February, 2027

WNEIR16EE
2029F24 158
16th February, 2027 to

15th February, 2029

colourmix &

BRTEE
Exercise price
per share

0.183057
HKS0.1832

0.0534/57
HKS$0.0534

005347870
HK$0.0534

0.05067 T
HKS$0.0506

0.05067 7T
HKS$0.0506

MORIMOR O

g REER REER RUE
4818 Rt XN 38318
2k Granted Lapsed HRATE

Balance at during during  Outstanding at

Ist April, 2022 the year the year  31st March, 2023

2,500,000 - - 2,500,000

18,000,000 - (1,200,000 16,800,000

18,000,000 - (1,200,000) 16,800,000

5,150,000 - - 5,150,000

5,150,000 - - 5,150,000

48,800,000 - (2,400,000 46,400,000

2,500,000
0.595 - 0.0534 0.0398

Veeko  wanko
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27. BRESTEI(E)

REE2022F3 831 HIEFER :

RILAH
Date of grant

2014E4A25H
25th April, 2014

017F179H
9th January, 2017

01751898
9th January, 2017

2UF1A9H
29th January, 2021

201%1A29A
29th January, 2021

N252R168
(Hita)

16th February, 2022
(Note a)

A02F2A16H
(Hiitn)

16th February, 2022
(Note b)

ARERTE

Exercisable at the end of the year

METEIER

Weighted average exercise price

colournmix &

S
Vesting period

NI4ELRBEE
201954 A4

25th April, 2014 to
24th April, 2019

NITEIAYAZ
20051788
9th January, 2017 to

8th January, 2020

NITEIAIRE
200F1A8H
9th January, 2017 to

8th January, 2022

MUFIAWAE
204517285
29th January, 2021 to

28th January, 2024

MIEIAYEE
2006F 17287
29th January, 2021 to

28th January, 2026

02F28168%
205528158

16th February, 2022 to
15th February, 2025

WNEIRI6EE
2007528158
16th February, 2022 to

15th February, 2027

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

27. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

BEERZERBRAA

During the year ended 31st March, 2022:

fifEHm

Exercise period

W19F4ABEE
202154 A14A

25th April, 2019 to
24th April, 2021

NNEIAIAZ
ANE1ASH
9th January, 2020 to

8th January, 2022

ANEFIAIRE
045 1A8R
9th January, 2022 to

8th January, 2024

NUFIAVAE
202618285
29th January, 2024 to

28th January, 2026

N26F1A29EE
2028F1728H
29th January, 2026 to

28th January, 2028

2005281682
027524150

16th February, 2025 to
15th February, 2027

WNEIR166E
200927158
16th February, 2027 to

15th February, 2029

SRR

Exercise price

per share

0300057
HKS$0.3000

0.1832%
HKS$0.1832

0.1832% 1
HKS0.1832

0.0534757
HKS$0.0534

005347870
HKS0.0534

0.0506%
HKS$0.0506

0.0506/57T
HKS$0.0506

LS REER REER RUnE
4A1B Rt &M 38318
13 Granted Lapsed HRTE

Balance at during during  Outstanding at

Ist April, 2021 the year the year 315t March, 2022

1,620,000 - (1,620,000) -

2,500,000 - (2,500,000) -

2,500,000 - - 2,500,000

19,300,000 - (1,300,000) 18,000,000

19,300,000 - (1,300,000) 18,000,000

- 5,150,000 - 5,150,000

- 5,150,000 - 5,150,000
45,220,000 10,300,000 (6,720,000) 48,800,000
2,500,000

0.0766 0.0506 0.1611 0.0595

MoriMor O VOCKO  WaANKO
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HZE2023F3A318ILLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
27. EEIRFEFE|I(EZ) 27. Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Bfet - Notes:

(a) FRERENGETATFEEAE0.019 (a) The estimated fair value per option is HK$0.019.
BT o

(b) PR IR B R 5T A B 1E 40.022 (b) The estimated fair value per option is HK$0.022.
BT o

HZE2023F3A31HIEFENRN - W EFBKRAE No share options were exercised during the year ended 31st March, 2023 (2022: Nil).
TELTIE (2022 « f) ©

T2022F2 A 16 B R 2 EREA T BER The fair values of the share options granted on 16th February, 2022 were calculated
HOAR—EFRETHEEBENGE  HA using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following inputs:

BT
20224
2A16H
16th February,
2022
R ERESE Number of options granted 10,300,000
B (E Share price HK$0.05007%8 7T
T{EE Exercise price HK$0.05067% 7T
78 B % 18 Expected volatility 45.09% - 45.14%
78 H 4F Hy Expected life 57 years
4 [ g FI) & Risk-free rate 1.565%
78 B AR 2. [ 3] Expected dividend yield 0.680 %

162
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27. BRESTEI(E)

BHERB R T —BRE - NELKEE
AREBYE  ET—ERERER -EER
i O RS AR B (R ] LA R RIS R A A F
EBEE -

AEBEERNEZE2023F3 8318 ILFE
BMARNBBRE Z2TEARERRESR 2
BRI /174,0007 7T (20224F © 155,0007%
JT) °

HZE2023F3A31IB L FEENEEZS
M RER I ERY  WEBRES X
o

KA RS HE R - AR Al £ F 46,400,000
(20224 : 48,800,000) 17 5T &) T ™ AR 1T {E
REERIE - RIBARARIEAINEALEE
BETERARTEZBREGSARRE
AN & 17 46,400,000 ( 2022 & : 48,800,000 )
% 3 3 A% N 464,000 7T (2022 4F © 488,000
77T ) B AR AN A K2 2,309,000 7T (2022 4F -
2,414,0007% 7T ) K B0 i (B (RN EITE
A) e

RZEMBRER2IERR - AARIHA
46,400,00017 5T &) T 8 KT8 A0 BB AR 4 -
(EARRRIRZBEEITRDAI1.8% -

colourmixey MoriMor O  VECKO  wanko

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
27. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the measurement of
fair value.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$174,000 for the year ended 31st
March, 2023 (2022: HK$155,000) in relation to the vesting of share options
granted by the Company.

Subsequent to the year ended 31st March, 2023 and up to the date of approval of
these financial statements, no share options were lapsed.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 46,400,000 (2022:
48,800,000) share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 46,400,000 (2022: 48,800,000) additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of HK$464,000 (2022:
HK$488,000) and share premium of HK$2,309,000 (2022: HK$2,414,000) (before
issuing expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had 46,400,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme, which represented approximately
1.8% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
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28. ZEBRESHREBRZMHE 28. Notes To The Consolidated Statement Of Cash Flows

(a) EEFREXRH (a) Major non-cash transactions

RARFEER  AEERTEEM#AEIE  During the year, the Group had non-cash additions including adjustments
BeFEOEPRESERMBERE M arising from lease modification to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
EEITMELENFAZD B 487,811,000/ of HK$87,811,000 (2022: HK$82,908,000) and HK$79,334,000 (2022:
71.(20224F : 82,908,000/ 7T ) 279,334,000  HK$63,733,000), respectively, in respect of retail stores.

77 (2022%F © 63,733,000 ) °

(b) BMEXKELNEMEEE (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Hipf5 & FEZBITEE HEAR

Other Interest-bearing
borrowing bank borrowings  Lease liabilities

FHET FTHERT THET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
H2021F4 818 At st April, 2021 - 389,494 155,316
MERSTFE Financing cash flows, net = (17,608) (116,988)
BRI HFAE/BETNEE New lease entered/lease modified = = 63,733
FRMAX Interest expenses _ - 2,906
DEAKEEMRBLTRENTMFE  Interest paid classified as operating cash
flows = = (2,9006)
Rk Exchange realignment = - 16
R20224F3 A31 8 R2022F4 A 1H At 31st March, 2022 and 1st April, 2022 - 371,886 102,077
BERERFH Financing cash flows, net 13,790 11,932 (90,311)
ERMHEEBETMEE New lease entered/lease modified - - 79,334
FBRX Interest expenses - - 2,768
DEBCEEBRESRNEMFE Interest paid classified as operating cash
flows - - (2,768)
R Exchange realignment - - 31)
1202353 A31H At 31st March, 2023 13,790 383,818 91,069
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28. HEBHERERZHE 28. Notes To The Consolidated Statement Of Cash Flows
(&) (Continued)
(c) HERESRBAR (¢) Total cash outflow for lease
2023 2022
FH FHT
HK$’°000 HK$’000
KBTS Within operating activities 12,158 14,170
B B A Within financing activities 90,311 116,988
102,469 131,158
29. EEEH 29. Pledge of Assets

RARERR - REEEATETRITHA At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were pledged by the Group
ESRTAEEN—RRITHERENE to certain banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group:

BT
2023 2022
HtaF FBT FAET
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
TEYZ Investment properties 13 472,456 447,692
HELHREF Leasehold land and buildings 14 33,116 38,355
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 15(a) 2,584 3,337
508,156 489,384
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HZE2023F3A318IEFE

30 BABARS

(a) BTZSHBEREREMBHF
TRS  REBMPUKEEZ G A

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
30. Related Party Transactions

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related parties

TEREMR RS during the year:

2023 2022
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000

REME Nature of transactions
BREGEEE 2R Expenses relating to short-term leases* 1,316 1,482
RF—BEZHFL Interest paid to a director 472 =
& ZEBBANFTNTESHE  * The entity is controlled by Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny, an executive director

FEAFEH] o

b) FEEBABZHE

RAFEN  EFREMEZERBABZ
T

of the Company.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the
year was as follows:

2023 2022

FET FHT

HK$°000 HK$’000

e HAE A Short-term benefits 5,336 4,905
EAEREA Post-employment benefits 121 114
VARR 12 R b8 2 (8 1~ Share-based payments 49 28
5,506 5,047

BEERTEZERABZEMKE 2B
mEFHEZ SR FENRA LT HBEM
MEFSRHESR

Annual Report 2023

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management is
recommended to the board of directors by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.
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31. RERESHERmITA
R|EER - SERS BT A2 REEN
T

BB A BT SREE

EfHEE KBRS

FEN B 5508

H b e IR

HeRREEEEE
BB A BT S HEE
B S %A

H A FE A 2R0E K B B B P

B SES

HEZETEE

Hipfe e

HEaE

colourmixey MoriMor O  VECKO  wanko

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

31.

Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the

end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets at amortised costs
Rental and utility deposits paid
Trade receivables

Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities at amortised costs
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Rental deposits received
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Other borrowing

Lease liabilities

2023 2022
FH 7T FET
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
37,555 50,344
4,559 2,475
4,033 3,004
38,097 10,259
84,244 66,082
15,443 9,511
13,966 7,714
3,227 2,493
383,818 375,505
13,790 -
91,069 102,077
521,313 497,300
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Annual Report 2023

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
32. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, trade payables, current portion of rental and utility deposits paid, other
receivables, other payables and accruals, rental deposits received and interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the chief financial officer is responsible
for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of
financial instruments. The chief financial officer reports directly to the board of
directors and the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by
the board of directors. The valuation process and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at
which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of rental deposits paid have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31st
March, 2023 and 2022. During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2022: Nil).
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade receivables, other receivables,
rental and utility deposits paid, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other
payables and accruals, rental deposits received, interest-bearing bank borrowings,
other borrowing and lease liabilities.

The risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(represented by interest rate risk and foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the short-term bank balances and deposits (note 19), interest-bearing
bank borrowings (note 23) and other borrowing (note 22) with floating interest
rate. It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating interest rate so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The exposure to the interest rate risk for
short-term bank balances is insignificant.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of HIBOR, LIBOR and SOFR arising from the Group’s bank loans. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy in relation to fair value and
cash flow interest rate risks. However, management monitors interest rate exposure
on an ongoing basis and will consider hedging significant interest rate risk should
the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates of bank loans. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. A 50 (2022: 50) basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
If interest rates had been 50 (2022: 50) basis point higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31st
March, 2023 would decrease/increase by HK$1,659,000 (2022: post-tax loss would
increase/decrease HK$1,568,000).
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from
interest-bearing bank borrowings and purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. In addition, group entities are exposed
to foreign currency risk attributable to intra-group receivables and payables where
the denomination of the receivables and payables is in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management closely monitors the foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s currency risk is mainly attributable to the exposure to cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, interest-bearing
bank borrowings and intra-group receivables and payables denominated in RMB,
HKS, USD and EUR. The carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:

BE a&

Assets Liabilities
2023 2022 2023 2022
FHERT FHT FHET FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
45 47 - -
49,109 47,476 12,714 8,678
10,932 9,100 857 3,124
_ = 471 1,266

Sensitivity analysis

As HKS is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect any significant movements
in the USD/HK$ exchange rate. In this regard, the Group does not expose to
significant currency risk arising from USD.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

K(E) (Continued)
ShERBR(E) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

TRETEMBEMEDRZEFIE L
BT RAREHR - AEBEZBHIZ
B BREARE BT REBTEERE
BEARESH I HRE  ZFEHIAR
REBARTENINEBHEEEIHB A RE
18] 9 4 Ui R A R TR (% S5 M K% e A
RELFAEREEB AR 2T B4

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period
to a reasonably possible change in the RMB, HK$ and EUR exchange rate, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit/loss after tax due to changes
in the fair values of Group’s outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items, intra-group receivables and payables where the denomination of the
receivables and payables is in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities.

H)Z RN EBEZIHHMH -
BT FRBL 12 R
EFH(TH) i, (R)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
HK$ profit after tax
Bt FET
% HK$’000
2023F 2023
BT ARBEE If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against
the RMB (5) 1,521
ST AREHE If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens
against the RMB 5 (1,521)
s 7T S BT B2 B If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against
the EUR (5) (19)
s 78 7T 5 BT FHE If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens
against the EUR 5 19
BT BREEER
EFH(THE) 2, ()
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
HK$ loss after tax
Bt FET
% HK$’000
20225 2022
WHETHARKEE If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against
the RMB 5) (1,622)
ST ARBHE If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens
against the RMB 5 1,622
AT HBUTE B If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against
the EUR (5) 53
fisi 78 7T % BT AHE If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens
against the EUR 5 (53)
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33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Credit Risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial assets under the ECL
model. Information about the Group’s credit risk management, maximum credit
risk exposures and the related impairment assessment, if applicable, is summarised
below:

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that a follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
on trade receivables individually for debtors. The estimated loss rates are estimated
based on historical observed default rates over the expected lives of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information, including but not limited to
expected growth rate of the industry that is available without undue cost or effort.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

The credit risks on bank balances and deposits are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. Other than the concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with good reputation and high credit ratings,
the Group does not have any other significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

The Group has considered that credit risk on other receivables, rental and utility
deposits paid, bank balances and deposits has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and has assessed the ECL rate under 12-month (“12m”) ECL
method based on the Group’s assessment in the risk of default of the respective
counterparties.
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33. B%EKBEEBZKRK 33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

K(E) (Continued)
EERE(E) Credit Risk (Continued)
REEZ AR EERBTERBBIFUAT The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following
85 - categories:
bl i EWE 5 RHE HitemEE
Category Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
a9ty HOFTHELRRBE  BEYEECMASNKE 2HEHREERE- REAEREEERE
WEEERE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
BRAE B AL ERBHREHEN ZHEREERR - 1218 RIEBRE EE1E
WEEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but  Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
usually settles in full after due date not credit-impaired
23 EERREFBANTZINERSNBE R 2HEREERHE- T HEHEE R -
TERRAE AR IZ AN BEEERE EEERE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit risk since initial recognition through credit-impaired credit-impaired
information developed internally or
external resources
&8 BEBBREECEERE T HEMEEEE - cHRHEERE -
BEEERE EEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
i sH BRBRTEBARNRRYHNE - BARSE  FIAE MK FIRE M
I 48 B IR e [0 ) T B
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is Amount is written off Amount is written off

in severe financial difficulty and the Group

has no realistic prospect of recovery
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33. BRAREEEERK
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1 -
oEz3
Notes
FEWE 55B 18
Trade receivables
B E 5508 18
Trade receivables
Ho At U R IE 16
Other receivables
RekBReEEER 19
Cash and cash equivalents
BEAREERKEZE TEH
Rental and utility deposits paid N/A
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i
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3Bk

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Credit Risk (Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of the Group’s financial assets,
which are subject to ECL assessment:

R2fEAR 2023%F 20224

SNEREERTAR REBEE TR EHRBEEER MREAE fRE A

2023 2022

External Internal 12m or Gross carrying  Gross carrying

credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount

TET TR

HK$’000 HKS$’000

TiEr P aEi EHRBEEBE - 4,559 2,475
W EEERE
N/A Note i Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired

TER Biati FHEREEERE - 3,818 4,009
BiEERE
N/A Note i Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired

TEA st REAEHREEEE 4,033 3,004
N/A Note ii 12m ECL

A3EAI P S REAEHEEEE 38,097 10,259
Aa3 to Al Note ii 12m ECL

TER P i REAEREEER 37,555 50,344
N/A Note ii 12m ECL

Notes:

ii.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the ECL
for trade debtors based on individual assessment. As at 31st March, 2023, the
Group considers that allowance for ECL for trade receivables is amounted to
HK$3,818,000 (2022: HK$4,009,000).

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group has applied the
general approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at 12m ECL as
there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group
determines the ECL for other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and rental
and utility deposits paid by assessment of probability of default. During the
years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2022, in view of the nature of these balances,
historical settlement records and good reputations of the counterparties, the
Group considers the provision of impairment loss for other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, and rental and utility deposits paid is insignificant.

colourmixey MoriMor O  VeCKO  wanko




BEERZERBRAA

e MRk M
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F3A31HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023

33. B EBREEEZERE 33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

K(E) (Continued)
EERE(E) Credit Risk (Continued)

TEEHERZE SR B (R2HEBREE The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for trade
BB AN2023E3 A31 B @R #E1TEE) receivables which are assessed individually as at 31st March, 2023 within lifetime
Rz EERBRER - 720234F3 A31 ECL. Credit-impaired debtors with a gross carrying amount of HK$3,818,000 as at
H BR 0 42 (8 /53,818,000 7 7T (2022 F 31st March, 2023 (2022: HK$4,009,000) were assessed individually.

4,009,0007%5 7T ) K915 B EE S A T E Bl
BT ©

BRI AR (E Gross carrying amount
FiEEE EWE S RE
Average Trade
A2023F3H31H At 31st March, 2023 loss rate receivables
FET
HK$°000

AMEETH Internal credit rating
KRB Low risk # 4,559
BmgsE Watch list # _
175 Doubtful 100 % 3,818
8,377
T EE R FEWE 5 5 IE
Average Trade
2022638318 At 31st March, 2022 loss rate receivables
FET
HK$°000

RS ERTAR Internal credit rating
1K & [ Low risk # 2,358
BingsE Watch list # 117
5 Doubtful 100% 4,009
6,484

# BALELR0.1%
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Credit Risk (Continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trade receivables within low
risk and watch list at the end of the reporting period which have been past due over
90 days are not considered as in default by considering the expected subsequent
and historical repayment from trade debtors.

For the years ended 31st March, 2023 and 2022, the Group performed impairment
assessment on financial assets other than trade receivables and concluded that
the probability of default of the counterparty is insignificant and accordingly, no
allowance for ECL is provided.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) that has
been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified approach.

2023 2022

FERT FET

HK$°000 HK$°000

F4) At the beginning of the year 4,009 5,461
B, CRE Z B Impairment/(reversal of impairment) 128 (2,000)
P& 3 328 Exchange realignment (319) 548
F At the end of the year 3,818 4,009

Annual Report 2023
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33. B¥RAREEEERK
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AEBESRMSRBREREERAREZES
FMRSESEEEKTE  AREEAERME
B RBERESREBZEE  UEER
PBESEK  EBREERAERRITEE
B IR (B 3E23) « AREIR KRB 2 IR
TREZBBRH  RERETEREZN
SR FA AR TTEVIS B o (W AR 5 B R A
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% B RIRITERZAEEREME R
MR ER AR AR i R E R AV ERITIE R - 1M
R E B RRITE R AT BB R AN EEE
e R2023%3 8318 - AEBZRKSHH
RITRVE R MEREE 539,447,00075 7T (2022
F : 56,683,000/ L) °

202363 A31H - AEEHNRBAER
3B H 7 )& E 331,859,000 7T (20224F -
320,729,000/ 70) © b - AEBE 2R S
N384 £ {E78 H 538,097,000 7T (2022
4+ 10,259,000 7T ) + R —F N E
REBRERERGRZRITEERER
383,818,00078 7T (20224 : 375,505,00058
JT) °
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FEBAE -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of secured bank borrowings (note 23) to
ensure unutilised banking facilities are adequate and ensure compliance with loan
covenants or to obtain waiver from the relevant banks if the Group is not able
to satisfy any of the covenant requirements. When there is any potential breach
of undertaking or financial covenants, the Group will actively negotiate with the
bank to obtain a waiver for the relevant undertaking or financial covenants to
avoid the bank from requesting for immediate repayment of any outstanding bank
borrowings drawn under the facility, such that the facility and bank borrowings
will continue to be available to the Group. As at 31st March, 2023, the Group has
unutilised banking facilities of HK$39,447,000 (2022: HK$56,683,000) available.

As at 31st March, 2023, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by HK$331,859,000 (2022: HK$320,729,000). In addition, the Group had cash
and cash equivalents of HK$38,097,000 (2022: HK$10,259,000) with total bank
borrowings due within one year or contain a repayable on demand clause amounted
to HK$383,818,000 (2022: HK$375,505,000).

The Group successfully renewed banking facilities that were due during the year.
The directors of the Company have evaluated the Group’s current undrawn banking
facilities and renewable bank borrowings and management maintains continuous
communication with the Group’s principal banks on the ongoing loan covenant
compliance, monitoring the maturity of bank borrowings as well as the increase of
banking facilities or redemption of existing debt.
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Annual Report 2023

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The directors of the Company have evaluated all the relevant facts available and
reviewed the Group’s bank loans and banking facilities available to the Group. In
opinion of the directors of the Company that the bank loans and banking facilities
would be renewed when their current terms expire. Up to the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements for issuance, the directors of the Company
are not aware of any intention of the Group’s principal banks to withdraw their
banking facilities granted or request early repayment of the utilised facilities within
the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

Despite uncertainties mentioned in note 2.1, the directors of the Company consider
that, after taking into account the cash and cash equivalents, existing banking
facilities and cash flows to be generated from operations, the Group will have
sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations for at least the next twelve months
from the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements.

The following tables detail the Group’s contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings containing a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve
at the end of the reporting period.
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HZE2023F3A31HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
33. BEmEEBZKE 33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
K(E) (Continued)
RBESRER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
RH2023F
RERS AFRRE 3A31H
METIIF = PRIF REARE ZEREE
Weighted  On demand Total Carrying
average  or less than 1E82F 2£Z5% undiscounted amount
interest rate lyear 1to2years 2toS5Syears  cashflows at31.3.2023
Bt TR TR TER TER TER

% HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000

20235 2023

ENEBSFAREMEMNZE Trade and other payables - 32,636 - - 32,636 32,636

TEZRITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings
—%8 — variable rate 31 390,463 - - 390,463 383,818
HipfEE Other borrowing 4.14 - 14,602 - 14,602 13,790
HEERE Lease liabilities 3.69 63,648 24,906 6,921 95,475 91,069
486,747 39,508 6,921 533,176 521,313
120226
RERH ARB S 38318
T 7| L3 nERE ZEHE
Weighted ~ On demand Total Carrying
average  or less than 1EZ25 2%6Z5%  undiscounted amount
interest rate lyear lto2years 2toS5years  cashflows at31.3.2022
BAL TAT TET TET TET TET
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000

20225 2022

ENE5HAREMEMNFZUE Trade and other payables - 19,718 - - 19,718 19,718

ABZRITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings
— %8 — variable rate 2.15 382,699 - - 382,699 375,505
HERR Lease liabilities 222 74,437 24,399 6,101 104,937 102,077

476,854 24,399 6,101 507,354 497,300
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F3A318ILLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023

33. B%EKBEEBZKRK 33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
K(E) (Continued)

RBESRAR(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)

REFIZBEE ST - NSEERESRKE  Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on
TER 2 IRITRE TSI [12E K41 demand or less than 1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31st
BRI ZHERR - 202343 A31H - %% March, 2023, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank borrowings amounted
RITEE 2 AR EE £383,818,000/8 7T to HK$383,818,000 (2022: HK$375,505,000). Taking into account the Group’s
(20224 : 375,505,000/8 7T ) ° ZEF|ARE financial position, the directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable
B2 BBEARN RAREEFHEERITE that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
ITEEERSHEERENEER - EEHEE repayment. The directors believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid within
BRABRTEEBREEERBESI 2T five years (2022: thirteen years) after the end of the reporting period in accordance
B A AN EIR 2 A5 (202248 - 13 with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, details of which
F)REE - FHEHINTEX : are set out in the table below:

BRI - ARERERANZRTRE(RBEERAHET)

Maturity analysis - Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause hased on scheduled repayments

RERT, RARE

SRR ihit
On demand or MAZIE SENE Total BEE
less than 12384 3 months 1228 225 Morethan  undiscounted Carrying
Imonth  1to3 months tolyear  1to2years  2toSyears Syears  cash outflow amount

TR TR ThT T TARL ThRL ThRL TR
HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO000  HKS000  HK§'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000

2023E3A31R8 31st March, 2023 362,056 301 19910 1,892 6,104 - 390,463 383,818

02438318 31st March, 2022 300,392 2,687 11,161 30,967 15,825 21,667 382,699 375,505
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HZE2023F3A31HIEFE

33. B¥RAREEEERK
R(E)

EXREHE
AEEEEH AR BRARE L KA

EEAFALE  WEBRLCEGRESS
BRBRRBERZTALDR - BBEFE © K

REBZEARBRIELFER - HBER
MFE23 B2 At B ZRITIEE ~ HIRRE
LREEEBARGRREBEREAA
e s - HERERTRARMERE -

AARERTREMEARRE - ERILE
Bz —IR  EFEREARARESER]
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For the year ended 31st March, 2023
33. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes interest-
bearing bank borrowings disclosed in note 23, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, comprising issued share
capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis. As
part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through monitoring the maturity of
interest-bearing bank borrowings as well as the increase of banking facilities.

34. Comparative Amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been re-presented to confirm to the current
year’s presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F3A318IEFE

35. APTFHBARRE

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

2023 2022
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
kRBEE Non-current Asset
S E=NEIE $ Interests in subsidiaries 53,631 53,631
REBEE Current Assets
Hoh pE MR TE Other receivables 378 311
IS IENEIVE N Due from subsidiaries 315,156 317,905
IRITHEBRIA S Bank balances and cash 46 39
315,580 318,255
REBAE Current Liabilities
H A FE A IE Other payables 820 858
RMB AR ZFIB Due to subsidiaries 222,418 222,441
223,238 223,299
REEEFE Net Current Assets 92,342 94,956
EEFE Net Assets 145,973 148,587
fEm Equity
f& 7N Share capital 25,180 25,180
RE(HaE) Reserves (note) 120,793 123,407
s Total Equity 145,973 148,587
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HZE2023F3A31HIEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2023
35. EQTBBERRERE) 35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company
(Continued)
Ktz : Note:
RERE BABHR  BRERSG 2RER A&t
Share
Share Contributed option  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve loss Total

TET TAT TR TR TR
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

202154418 At Ist April, 2021 223,654 53,135 383 (133,508) 143,664
AEEBEREZEEE Loss and total comprehensive loss for

the year - - - (20,165) (20,165)
BREREE UKD AET 2B Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments - - 155 - 155
BRI BRIE Share options lapsed - - (247) - (247)
202238318 K At 31st March, 2022 and 1st April, 2022

2022F4A1H 223,654 53,135 291 (153,673) 123,407

AEEFREREZAERE Loss and total comprehensive loss for

the year - - - (2,776) (2,776)
BREREE RN AETE 2B Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments - - 174 - 174
BRM BRE Share options lapsed - - 12) - 12)
R2023F3A31R At 31st March, 2023 223,654 53,135 453 (156,449) 120,793
36. #HEBBERE 36. Approval of the Financial Statements

EF2ERN2023F6 27 #E L EEE  The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
A FBEIRE © directors on 27th June, 2023.
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Financial Summary

4 RESULTS
HZEIANALEE
Year ended 31st March,
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
TR THT TR THT T
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EE 1] REVENUE 1,693,426 1,042,397 517,246 499,849 472,625
MBATRR (B5E) PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (71,017) (255,678) (179,319) (52,431) 6,109
AEHREX INCOME TAX EXPENSE (8,334) (2,770) (5,563) (935) (1,082)
EERA/(BE) PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (79,351) (258,448) (184,882) (53,366) 5,027
SEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
W3A318
At 31st March,
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
FHEL FET TEL FiEr TR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EEAR TOTAL ASSETS 1,022,851 1,129,530 812,025 759,450 772,588
=rt TOTAL LIABILITIES (393,021) (775,166) (615,609) (560,039) (572,378)
RRES SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 629,830 354,364 196,416 199,411 200,210
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VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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